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HONOURS AND AWARDS

Orient Victory Travel Group Company Limited

The Company won “Gold Award” in the 2016 Vision Awards Annual Report Competition organised by League of American
Communications Professionals LLC (“LACP”), as well as awarded the “Top 80 Annual Reports in the Asia-Pacific Region”, and the
“Top 40 Chinese Annual Reports of 2016”. LACP is an authoritative internal professional awards institution and its annual report

competition is highly endorsed in the industry.

2016 VISION AWARDS
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”)
of Orient Victory Travel Group Company Limited (formerly
known as Orient Victory China Holdings Limited) (the
“Company” together with its subsidiaries the “Group”,
stock code: 265), I am pleased to present the annual report
(the “Annual Report”) of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 (the “Year”).

SUMMARY OF RESULTS

For the Year, the Group recorded (i) a revenue of approximately
HK$264.57 million, representing an increase of approximately
141.8% as compared to the last financial year of approximately
HK$109.42 million; (i) the loss attributable to equity owners of
the Company was approximately HK$46.85 million compared
to the loss attributable to equity owners of the Company of
approximately HK$191.82 million for corresponding period of
last year; (iii) a loss per share of HK0.46 cents, as compared with
the loss per share of HK1.64 cents (restated) for the year ended
31 December 2016.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

(a) Travel Related and Other Services Business

The Group will continue to focus on allocate resources
in promotion and marketing to expand and diversify
its business product types such as MICE (Meetings,
Incentives, Conferences and Exhibitions). We will also
be working with global travel related solutions providers
and we expect to gain our market share in this area with
our global travel management partner bringing global

management practice to the Hong Kong market and

continue to improve our service and tools for companies
both large multinationals and SMEs. The Group will be
benefit from the vast network of China Comfort Tourism
Group Company Limited* (F 50 FEsf ik 2 4 F A R 2
7)) (formerly known as China Comfort Travel Group
Company Limited* ( v [0 R i A7 AL 4R A PR AT A

7)) (“China Comfort”), an associate company of the

Group, the integrated online service system of China
Comfort by building its own online platform, together
with the cooperation with major B2C platforms (such
as Ctrip and Tuniu). The Board believes that the Group
and China Comfort will complement each other with
their own remarkable resources while the Group will
make vigorous efforts to promote its MICE business
and penetrate into the Chinese tourism market, so as to

strengthen its position in the tourism market.

Trading and Retail of Jewellery Business

Due to the sluggish economic environment and the
increase in prices of raw materials such as gold, and
certain other factors, the performance of our jewellery
business is deteriorating. Over the past years, although the
Group has tried various ways to improve the performance
by, including, reducing its staff costs and leasing costs as
well as entering into a business cooperation agreement
with an independent jewellery retailer as details is
mentioned in the section of Management Discussion
and Analysis, this segment still suffered loss for the Year.
Despite this segment is not the core business of the
Group and is not expected to be a meaningful driver
of or contributor to the operating results of the Group
going forward, the Group will consider making further

appropriate strategic decision as and when necessary.
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(d)  Property Development and Investment Business

During the Year, the Group had successfully entered
into the property industry by acquiring a land in New
Zealand. The preliminary plan is to develop the land
in phases which will comprise self-serviced units and

residential units.

The Board believes the acquisition represented a good
investment opportunity for the Group to broaden the
business scope and increase the profitability of the

Group.

New Business Updates

The Group is exploring other potential opportunities incidental
to the travel industry, including but not limited to acquisition of
land and construction of self-serviced and residential units. The
potential investments, if materialised, are expected to enable the
Group to expand its travel-related business vertically as well as to

generate synergy effects on the existing business of the Group.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, “Travel +” (i.e. Travel + Finance + Property
Development) will be the main revenue driver of the Company
in the future and the Company will make vigorous effort to
develop “Travel +” business, with the focus on investment in
travel resources, increasing its market share in the tourism
market and enhancing its influence in the financial service and
property development industries, aiming to turn the Group into a
comprehensive service provider.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I wish to express my sincere gratitude to
the shareholders and business partners of the Company for their
continuous support as well as to the Board, management and all
our staff members for their diligence, devotions and contributions.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the Year (2016: Nil).

Shi Baodong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

I..
e

BUSINESS REVIEW

Travel Related and Other Services Business

The continuing economic slowdown, weak demand of high cabin
corporate travel, intense competition from online travel agencies
and direct sale of low cost carriers continuously adversely

affected the Group’s operating performance.

Despite the travel related and other services segment recorded
an increase in revenue from approximately HK$78.33 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately HK$236.29
million for the Year, the increase was mainly attributable to
the fact that the sale of air tickets was recognised on a gross
basis instead of a net basis throughout the Year. This segment
recorded an operating loss of approximately HK$2.14 million
for the Year (2016: HK$3.82 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 44.0%.

The Group has been looking for more experienced sales and
marketing staff to capture more business and clients from the
markets of Hong Kong and Mainland China as well as secking
to develop highly profitable tourism products, including MICE
(Meetings, Incentives, Conferences and Exhibitions) business,

cruise business and hotel booking business.

The Group has been working with global partners to develop
travel reporting tools to provide opportunity corporate clients
with effective and efficient travel management solution that are

customized to their needs.

The Group proposes to provide comprehensive training and
allowances for the study of tourism-related courses to its staff
in order to improve their knowledge, service quality and service

standards in tourism and travel related business.

Trading and Retail of Jewellery Business

This segment involves the distribution and sale of jewellery
products such as precious stones, jade, gold and silver in our
Groups flagship stores and counters of large department stores

in Nanjing.

During the period from October 2016 to May 2017, blocked
fences were set up along the road in front of our flagship store in
Nanjing by the local municipal government and as a result, there
was a drop in number of customers. Furthermore, as disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 22 June 2017, on 8 June
2017, there was a fire accident (the “Fire Accident”) on the top of
the third floor of the building, two floors above where our flagship
jewellery store (the “Jewellery Store”) is situated. The Jewellery

Store was temporarily closed for urgent repair and reopened on 30
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June 2017. Upon investigation by the local fire department, the Fire
Accident was caused by a careless contractor (the “Contractor”)

who was appointed for a water proofing work at the scene.

On 27 July 2017, the Group took legal action against the Contractor
at the People’s Court of Qinhuai, Nanjing, the People Republic of
China (“PRC”) seeking damages for loss and damage of the Group
arising from the Fire Accident. On 14 February 2018, the Group
reached an agreement with the Contractor through mediation by
the court that the Contractor is required to pay the Group a sum of
RMB0.55 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.66 million)
being damages for loss and damage of the Group by 31 March
2018. Such payment was received by the Group on 2 April 2018.

As a result of the above issues, this segment recorded a decrease
in revenue to approximately HK$26.54 million for the Year (2016:
approximately HK$30.27 million) and a significant increase
in operating loss to approximately HK$2.58 million (2016:
approximately HK$1.13 million).

Attempting to improve the performance of this segment,
on 27 July 2017, the Jewellery Store entered into a business
cooperation agreement (“Cooperation”) with an independent
jewellery retailer. Under the Cooperation, the Jewellery Store
shall provide the jewellery retailer with a shop space for the
operation of jewellery retail business for a term of two years
commencing from 1 August 2017. During the term, the
jewellery retailer shall pay to the Jewellery Store an aggregate
sum of RMB0.82 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.98
million) and RMBO0.84 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$1.01 million) for the first year and second year respectively.
All expenses and staff costs in respect of the operation of
jewellery retail business at the place provided by the Jewellery
Store shall be borne by the jewellery retailer.

Although the Group has tried various ways to improve the
performance of its jewellery business by, including, reducing
its staff costs and leasing costs as well as entering into the
Cooperation over the years, this segment still suffered loss for
the Year. Despite the redoubled effort put by the management,
management of the Group considers that this segment is not the
core business and is not expected to be a meaningful driver of or
contributor to the operating results going forward. The Group
will consider making further appropriate strategic decision as and

when necessary.

The principal assets for this segment are inventories, which
are mainly comprised of gold ornaments, gold materials,
inlaid ornament and diamond materials. During the course of
business, the Group has well-established systems for sourcing,
warehousing, storage, payment, delivery, sales and payment
collection for the purposes of better inventory and credit
control. The Group’s internal control system has been effectively

implemented throughout the Year.

Financial Services Business

On 24 January 2017, the Company completed the acquisition
of the entire issued share capital of Azure Capital. Throughout
the Year, the Group had carried out certain number of regulated
activities under the SFO through its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
namely Azure Asset Management and Azure Capital. Azure
Asset Management is a corporation licenced to carry on Type
4 (Advising on Securities) and Type 9 (Asset Management)
regulated activities and Azure Capital is a corporation licenced
to carry on Type 6 (Advising on Corporate Finance) regulated
activity under the SFO.

During the Year, financial services segment recorded revenue
of HK$1.74 million (2016: TIK$0.82 million) and losses from
operation approximately HK$2.80 million (2016: HK$0.61

million) from regulated activities.

The Company believes the financial and equity market would
remain stable and is not expected to experience significant
fluctuations in the short run, which should be favorable to the
growth of Azure Capital and Azure Asset Management. In
addition, the Company has diverted efforts to remarket the
brand name and promote the service of Azure Capital and
Azure Asset Management, an increase in new financial advisory

contracts and positive revenue contribution are expected. The
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Company expects a reasonable return under the current market

conditions and increase in revenue would be received.

The Directors believe that the acquisition can expand the
financial services limb of the principal business activities of
the Group and therefore maximize returns to Shareholders. It
also marked an important step of the Group to enter into the
financial industry in Hong Kong. The Company will continue
to monitor the development of Azure Capital and Azure Asset
Management and the market situation and alter the business

strategy along with the market conditions.

Property Development and Investment Business

During the Year, the Group had successfully entered into the
property industry by acquiring a land in New Zealand. The
preliminary plan is to develop the land in phases which will
comprise self-serviced units and residential units. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 11
August 2017.

The land is located in a tourism hub in North Auckland with
close proximity to motorway, public transport, local amenities
and popular tourist attractions. Identifying critical housing
shortage in Auckland, the Board believes the acquisition

represented a good investment opportunity for the Group.

As the acquisition was only completed in late 2017 and the
development is still under a preliminary stage, no revenue was
recorded and this segment recorded a loss of approximately
HK$82,000 during the Year.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
1. Operating Performance

Revenue was approximately HK$264.57 million for the
Year, representing an increase of approximately 141.8%
as compared to the last financial year of approximately
HK$109.42 million. The increase was mainly attributable
to the fact that the sale of air tickets was recognised on a

gross basis instead of a net basis throughout the Year.

A loss of approximately HK$56.03 million was
recorded for the Year as compared with a substantial
loss of approximately HK$194.07 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016, representing a decrease of
approximately 71.1%. The significant decrease in loss

was primarily attributable to:

(i) the significant decrease in the share of loss of
an associate of the Group from HK$148.37
million for the year ended 31 December 2016
to HK$13.52 million for the Year due to the fact
that no asset impairment was recorded by the
associate for the Year (2016: HK$141.91 million);

(ii) the absence of the net amortised finance charge
of HK$12.06 million for the interest free loans

incurred in the corresponding year; and

(iii)  the decrease in the share of loss of an associate
and amortised finance charge were partially

offset by an increase of administrative expenses.

Asset Quality

Our assets mainly include cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposits, trade receivables, inventories
and interest in an associate. The balance of cash and
cash equivalents and restricted bank deposits totally
amounted to approximately HK$401.14 million, of which
approximately HK$49.85 million, HK$20.81 million
and HK$8.95 million were denominated in RMB, New
Zealand dollar ("NZD”) and USD, respectively.

The balances of trade receivables of approximately
HK$28.16 million are mainly due from the customers
of Four Seas Tours Limited, which are mostly well-
known and large enterprises. The ageing of our trade
receivables of approximately HK$25.77 million, which
represents about 91.5% of our total trade receivables, is
within 90 days.
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The balance of inventories is approximately HK$63.7

million, which are the raw materials and finished goods
of jewellery products and a land in New Zealand. Out of
which, approximately HK$8.40 million were pledged as

security for the Group’s bank loans.

Interest in an associate amounted to approximately
HK$399.27 million, which was mainly attributable to
intangible assets, including China Comfort’s trademark

and distribution network.

3. Liability Structure

Our liabilities mainly include trade payables and short-
term borrowings. The balances of trade payables amount
to approximately HK$33.39 million. The ageing of our
trade payables of approximately HK$33.23 million,
which represents approximately 99.5% of our total trade

payables, is within 90 days.

As at 31 December 2017, the balances of short-term
borrowings were approximately HK$8.95 million, which
was denominated in RMB. Among which, HK$4.80
million were secured bank loans with effective interest
rate of 4.35% per annum and HK$4.15 million were
other unsecured borrowings and at an interest rate of

6.5% per annum for the year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

During the Year, the Group’s operations and investments
continued to be mainly financed by internal resources,
borrowings as well as proceeds raised from issuance of equity
financing exercises. As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s
cash and cash equivalent and the restricted bank deposit
totally amounted to approximately HK$401.14 million (2016:
approximately HK$368.02 million), representing an increase
of approximately 9.0% as compared to the year ended 31
December 2016, which are managed centrally (save for the
fund to be used in a specific project). The increase of cash and
cash equivalent and the restricted bank deposit was mainly
attributable to the net proceeds of approximately HK$135.21
million raised from issuing new shares upon the exercise of

warrants.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total bank and other
borrowings of approximately HK$8.95 million (2016: HK$9.62
million), all of which were denominated in RMB. Among
which, approximately HK$4.80 million were bank loans (2016:
approximately HK$5.57 million), which were secured and
the effective interest rate was 4.35% per annum for the Year
(2016: 4.5% to 6.0% per annum) and approximately HK$4.15
million were other short-term borrowings (2016: approximately
HK$4.05 million), which were unsecured and at an interest rate

of 6.5% per annum for the Year (2016: 6.5% per annum).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a current ratio
of approximately 7.82 (2016: 5.41). The gearing ratio was
not applicable as the Group had net cash of approximately
HK$348.75 million as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
approximately HK$325.01 million).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Since the transactions of the Group were mainly denominated in
HK$, RMB and NZD, the Group is exposed to foreign currency
risk on the cash and cash equivalents of the entity which are
denominated in RMB and NZD whose functional currency is
HKS$. During the Year, the Group had reviewed the hedged
product in respect of foreign currency exposure of NZD but
no hedging action was performed by the Group during the
Year. The Directors will continue to monitor the related foreign
currency exposure and are prepared to take appropriate hedging

action as and when necessary.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had capital commitments
relating to the committed investment in a joint venture company
of RMB4,000,000.
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FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

(a)

Exercise of Warrants

On 4 May 2016, the Company issued 1,568,476,768

units of warrants to its Shareholders.

Each warrant entitles its holder to subscribe in cash for
one new ordinary share at an initial subscription price
of HK$0.195 per share which was then adjusted to
HK$0.193 per share with effect from 24 October 2016
(subject to further adjustment) in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the instrument of the warrants.
The warrants were exercisable at any time during the
period of twelve months commencing from 4 May
2016 and ending on 3 May 2017 (both dates inclusive).
Further details of the warrants are disclosed in the

Company’s circular dated 26 April 2016.

During the Year, 700,552,419 units of warrants had
been exercised by the warrants holders and accordingly,
700,552,419 ordinary shares were issued and allotted
by the Company to the holders of the warrants and
cash proceeds of approximately HK$135.21 million
were raised under the exercise of 700,552,419 units of

warrants.

The remaining warrants were expired on 3 May
2017 and there are no outstanding warrants as at 31
December 2017.

ACQUISITIONS AND INVESTMENTS

(a)

(b)

Azure Capital

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement
dated 25 January 2017, the Company completed the
acquisition of 100% shareholdings of Azure Capital on
24 January 2017, a licensed corporation to carry on Type
6 (advising on Corporate Finance) regulated activity
under the SFO for the consideration of approximately
HK$6.42 million, which is determined with reference
to the net asset value of the Azure Capital as at 31
December 2016.

Nibou Company Limited (“Nibou™)

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements
dated 10 March 2017 and 13 March 2017, Yield Quality
Investment Limited (“Yield Quality”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company as the purchaser, Mr.
Ippa Kitazono as the vendor, and Mr. Zhang Jie and Mr.
Hui Wan Sang as the guarantors of the vendor entered
into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which,
amongst others, Yield Quality conditionally agreed to
purchase, and Mr. Ippa Kitazono conditionally agreed to
sell the sale shares representing 78% of the issued share
capital of Nibou at the consideration of JPY103,740,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$7,053,283) (the “Nibou
SPA”). Due to the vendor has failed to complete the
transaction in accordance with the term of the Nibou
SPA and has been in breach of it. On 10 November
2017, Yield Quality issued a writ of summons against the
vendor and the guarantors for the sum of HK$2,416,461
(or its JPY equivalent), damages for breach of the Nibou
SPA and/or indemnity for damages for breach of the

Nibou SPA, interest, further or other relief and costs.
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*

Establishment of Joint Venture

Reference is made to the announcement of the
Company dated 13 April 2017 in relation to the
formation of a joint venture company, namely Ningbo
Meishan Bonded Port Shousheng Jianyin Investment
Management Company Limited* (%% 4 L1 £f Bt ¥ [
BB A SRR EHARAT]) (the “JV Company”).

The Articles of the [V Company was signed on 13 April
2017. Under the Articles, the total registered share
capital of the JV Company is RMB10 million, which
will be contributed and held as to 40% by Shenzhen
Dongsheng Huamei Cultural Travel Company Limited
(an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
(“Dongsheng Huamei”), 30% by Guangzhou Tianlun
Wanyi Investment Limited (“Tianlun”) and 30% by
Jian Yin Ju Yuan Investment Management (Beijing)
Limited (“Jian Yin Ju Yuan”). Each of Tianlun and Jian
Yin Ju Yuan is a connected person of the Company.
The JV Company will engage in project investment,
investment management, asset management and
investment consultancy, subject to the approval of the

local administration of industry and commerce.

The JV Company has already obtained the business
licence in the PRC on 16 May 2017.

English translation for indication purpose only

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(e)

Acquisition of Land in New Zealand

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 11 August 2017, the Company entered into the
agreement with Horncastle Home Limited, a company
incorporated in New Zealand with limited liability and
is independent of and not connected with the Company
or any of its connected person (as defined in the Listing
Rules), in relation to the acquisition of a piece of land
in New Zealand at the consideration of approximately
NZD9 million (equivalent to approximately HK$51.3
million). The land is located at Silverdale, Auckland of
New Zealand and has an aggregate area of approximately
15,742 sq.m. for the development of self-serviced units

and residential units.

The acquisition was completed on 14 November
2017 and the development of the land is still under a

preliminary stage.

Investment in a Joint Venture Company

Reference is made to the announcement of the
Company dated 10 July 2017 in relation to an investment
agreement (the “Agreement”) entered into among,
Donghui Hong Kong Holdings Limited (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (“Donghui
HK"), Beijing Yitian New Music Cultural Development
Company Limited* A= R de b E 5
RBAMAT) (the “New JV Company”) and five equity
holders of the New JV Company (the “Investors”) in
relation to the capital injection into the registered capital
of the New JV Company by Donghui HK (the “Capital
Injection”) in accordance with the Agreement. One of

the Investors is a connected person of the Company.
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*

Pursuant to the Agreement, three of the Investors will
transfer a total of 30% interest in the New JV Company
to Donghui HK, in consideration of Donghui HK
injecting RMB15 million (the “Consideration”) into
the New JV Company. Upon completion, the registered
capital of the New JV Company will be held as to 30%
and 70% by Donghui HK and the Investors respectively.
Donghui HK will become the largest equity holder
of the New JV Company and the financial statement
of the New JV Company will be consolidated into the
financial statement of the Group. As a result, the New
JV Company will become an indirect non-wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company.

The Board constantly reviews the Company’s business
strategy and continues to explore attractive business
opportunities. The New JV Company specialises
in cultural and art exchange and activities, and the
Company intends to expand its travel-related business
with the New JV Company. The Board considers that the
capital injection can strengthen the capital base of the
New JV Company to cater for future development and
business growth, which will enhance the performance
of the New JV Company, and in turn will increase the

overall profits of the Group.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the conditions
precedent under the Agreement have not been fulfilled
in full and completion of the Agreement will take place

when all the conditions precedent have been fulfilled.

English translation for indication purpose only

PLEDGES OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, certain assets of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$42.24 million (31 December
2016: HK$40.57 million) were pledged as collateral for

borrowings obtained by its subsidiaries and associate.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had pledged
the entire equity interest of Shenzhen Dong Sheng Hua Yu
Commercial Management Co. Ltd.* (¥ Y W B # 2 7 3%
H B MR A A) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and had pledged the entire issued share capital of
Donghui Hong Kong Holdings Limited (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company), to secure the issue of the
perpetual convertible securities of March 2016 (please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 30 March 2016 and circular
dated 29 January 2016 for details) in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$170 million.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had contingent liabilities
in respect of a letter of credit secured for bank borrowings of
an associate in an amount of HK$33.25 million (31 December
2016: HK$33.39 million).

NUMBER AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2017, the total number of employees of the
Group was 130 (31 December 2016: 137). Staff costs (including
Directors” emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$31.51
million for the Year (2016: approximately HK$30.64 million).

In addition to salary, other fringe benefits such as medical
insurance and mandatory provident fund schemes for employees,
are offered to all employees of the Group. Performance of
the employees is normally reviewed on an annual basis with
adjustment to their salaries comparable to that of the market.
Individual employees may also receive a discretionary bonus at

the end of each year based on their individual performance.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS
MR. SHI BAODONG (“MR. SHI")

Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Shi, aged 49, was appointed as our Chairman and executive
Director in September 2014, Mr. Shi is the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) and a member of the remuneration committee
of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) of the
Company. Mr. Shi graduated from the Hebei University of
Architecture in 1989. He has over 18 years of experience in
property development and he is a qualified engineer in the
PRC. Mr. Shi is the director of Orient Victory Group HK
Holdings Limited* (3¢ B 42 B 7 ¥ % Bt A F 2 7)) and the
founder, shareholder and chairman of Orient Victory Cultural
& Tourism Group Company Limited* OR B A i 7% 4 E
A M A #) (formerly known as Shijiazhuang Orient Victory
Investments Group Limited* (£7 % H 17 5 #% & £ [ A [)
2 #])) (“"OVCT"), which is principally engaged in property
development, including the development of residential
properties, commercial properties, properties and ancillary
facilities for the elderly, as well as an ecological park and
a culture park in the PRC. In October 2015, Mr. Shi was
appointed as president of China Comfort, an associate of the
Group, and is responsible for the overall management of China
Comfort.

Mr. Shi is the vice chairman of the China Real Estate Industry
Association and a consultant of its Special Committee for
China Urban Development, Special Committee for Elderly
Residential Area and Special Committee for China Small Town
Development. At the same time, Mr. Shi is the standing vice
president of Hebei Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong and

the vice president of Chinese Rowing Association.

Mr. Shi is the sole director and sole beneficial owner of
Orient Victory Real Estate Group Holdings Limited, which
holds 9,900,620,661 shares of the Company which include
2,062,717,781 units of 2016 October PCS giving rise to an
interest of 2,062,717,781 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 77.66% of the total issued capital of the Company.

Beside, Mr. Shi personally holds 130,239,145 ordinary shares
of the Company, representing approximately 1.02% of the total
issued capital of the Company.

MR. ZHAO HUINING (“MR. ZHAO”)

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Zhao, aged 50, was appointed as our executive Director
and chief executive officer with effect from 16 June 2017 and
15 July 2017, respectively. Mr. Zhao is also a member of our
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr.
Zhao graduated from the Transportation Management and
Engineering Department (& i 4 P L 2 &) of Northern
Jiaotong University (A& 5 AR B, majoring in traffic and
transportation (32 % & i & ) in 1990. In 2004, Mr. Zhao
obtained a master degree of Arts from Flinders University of
South Australia in International Relations in Economy and
Trade which were jointly offered by Nankai University (FEBAXR
£2) and Flinders University of South Australia and graduated
I K 2) with a doctoral degree

in management science and engineering (1§ ¥l F} £ 8 T. %)

from Yanshan University (3

in 2014. Mr. Zhao was conferred the title of senior economist
qualification in the PRC in 2002.

Mr. Zhao has extensive working experiences, including working
as a staff member in Project Evaluation Division of Mechanical
and Electrical Equipment Tendering Bureau of Hebei Province
(I b 4 B 56 5l 4 B R JH H RF A5 JE) from 1990 to 1992;
staff member and senior staff member of the Traffic, Post and
Telecommunications Division of Hebei Provincial Economic
and Trade Commission (Y1/Jb45 #8 & ZALHEEEJE) from 1992
to 1997; deputy director of Beijing office of Hebei Provincial
Economic and Trade Commission (7] 4k 45 8 & Z b 78 i &
J&) from 1997 to 1998; deputy director of Foreign Economic
Relations Division of Hebei Provincial Economic and Trade
Commission (] At & & B AN ) (“HPETC”) from 1998
to 2000; deputy director of the office of HPETC and director
of Beijing office of HPETC from 2000 to 2001 successively;
legal representative, executive director and general manager
of Hebei Economic and Trade Investment Co., Ltd. (7 4t &
BUE BBEFRAT) from 2001 to 2005 successively; legal
representative, executive director, general manager and secretary
of Party Committee of Hebei Information Industry Investment
Co., Ltd. (At 5 B2 &8 E A A ) from 2005 to 2009
successively. He was elected as the vice chairman of the tenth
session of the committee of Hebei Youth League ( Wb H A
A8 in December 2009. From 2009 to 2014, Mr. Zhao worked
in Hebei Construction & Investment Group Co., Ltd (#f 4t =8
I E LA R EEA ) with last position as chairman and

secretary for the Party Committee. He was also the chairman

17
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and president of Gaokang Capital Investment Management
Co., Ltd (R EEARLEEHAERAR), a subsidiary of China
Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection Group (H
i g 2R PR 22 ) from 2014 to 2016. Mr. Zhao is currently a
director and the president of China Culture Industry Investment
Fund Management Co., Litd (H Bl E SCAb i 43 B Ak 4 45 B
AT]), a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Zhao was a non-executive
director of China Suntien Green Energy Corporation Limited, a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code: 00956), during the period
from February 2010 to August 2014.

MR. WANG JIANHUA (“MR. WANG”)

Executive Director

Mr. Wang, aged 54, was appointed as our executive Director in
September 2014. Mr. Wang holds a master’s degree in business
administration from the Pacific States University and is a
qualified accountant in the PRC. He is currently a vice president
in OVCT and has substantial working experience in the finance
and investment field in the PRC.

MS. SONG SINING (“MS. SONG”)

Non-executive Director

Ms. Song, aged 40, was appointed as our non-executive Director
with effect from 16 June 2017. Ms. Song is also a member of
the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”).
She graduated from the Philosophy Department (¥ % %) of
Hebei University in Public Relation (2> B B 2£) in 1997 and
graduated from the Correspondence College of the Central
School of Communist Party of China (41 3 % ¢ i #% 8 F%) in
2000, majoring in economic management (P EPLEZE). She
completed a practical training course in real estate (B Bk 2
M E WIS BE) provided by Peking University in 2015. Ms. Song
served as a senior management in other real estate companies
for more than 15 years. She is currently a vice president of
Orient Victory Real Estate Development Group Limited (R
G B R E A R A F]), a company indirectly wholly-owned
by Mr. Shi.

MR. DONG XIAO]JIE (“MR. DONG”)

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Dong, aged 55, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director in September 2014. Mr. Dong is the
chairman of Remuneration Committee. Mr. Dong graduated
from the Hebei Normal University, majoring in mathematics in
1984. He has been a principal partner of Shengyuan Investment
Risk Consulting Management Co., Ltd. since 2011 and was
appointed as a director of Robyn Hode Capital Limited in April
2015.

MR. HE QI (“MR. HE”)

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. He, aged 62, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director in September 2014, Mr. He is a member of
our Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. He has
been an independent non-executive director of China Merchants
Land Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 978), since 2013. He has also been an independent non-
executive director of Evergrande Real Estate Group Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3333),
since 2009. Mr. He was the deputy secretary of China Real
Estate Association for the period from 2006 to 2016. Mr. He
is currently a secretary of Distribution Services Committee of

China Real Estate Association.

MR. LAW WANG CHAK, WALTERY (“MR. LAW”)
Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Law, aged 54, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director in September 2014. Mr. Law is the
chairman of our Audit Committee and a member of both the

Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Law is currently a senior vice president of the finance and
corporate development of Gold Peak Industries (Holdings)
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
0040). He has over 30 years of experience in financial audit,
financial due diligence reviews, mergers and acquisitions,
corporate restructuring, accounting and corporate finance

advisory.

Since April 2015, Mr. Law has been an independent non-
executive director, chairman of the audit committee, and a
member of the remuneration committee of D&G Technology
Holding Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1301). Since November 2016, Mr. Law
has been a non-executive director of In Technical Productions
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 8446). Since November 2017, Mr. Law has been
an independent non-executive director, chairman of the audit
committee, and a member of the nomination committee
of Vicon Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 3878). Since November 2017, Mr. Law
has been an independent non-executive director, chairman

of the audit committee, and a member for each of the
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remuneration committee and nomination committee of Solis
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 2227).

Previously, Mr. Law was an executive partner of Profundas
Capital Limited, a private equity and investment advisory firm
from December 2010 to January 2018 and had been the chief
financial officer and non-executive director of Nine Dragons
Paper (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2689), from June 2004 to July 2008
and from August 2008 to October 2008, respectively. Mr. Law
also served in different key roles such as chief financial officer
and vice president of the finance department in four other
companies between December 1992 and May 2004, all of which
were listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange at the relevant
time. Mr. Law had worked in the audit division of Coopers &
Lybrand (currently known as PricewaterhouseCoopers) between
August 1987 and November 1992.

Mr. Law was admitted as a fellow of both the Chartered
Certified Accountants (formerly known as Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants) in the United Kingdom in October
1995 and the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (currently
known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants)
in February 1998. Mr. Law is currently registered as a Certified
Public Accountant (Practising) with the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Law was also admitted as a
fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales in July 2017.

Mr. Law graduated from the London School of Economics and
Political Science, the University of London with a bachelor’s
degree in economics in August 1991 and a master’s degree in

financial economics in December 1995.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MR. WONG CHI KIN (“MR. WONG”)

Chief Financial Officer

Aged 44, Mr. Wong was appointed as Chief Financial Officer
of the Company in October 2014. He has over 20 years of

experience in accounting, banking and corporate finance with

various international banks and companies listed in Hong Kong
and the United Kingdom. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong
held various positions at China Qinfa Group Limited (Stock
Code: 866), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, including deputy chief financial officer
(from April 2011 to September 2011), and chief financial officer
(from September 2011 to October 2014), company secretary
and authorized representative (from July 2011 to August 2014).
Further, Mr. Wong was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Tsui Wah Holdings Limited (“Tsui Wah”)
(Stock Code: 1314), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, on 5 November 2012 and was
re-designated from an independent non-executive director to
a non-executive director of Tsui Wah on 1 November 2016.
Further, Mr. Wong was appointed as a non-executive director
of Asiaray Media Group Limited (HK stock code:1993) on 24
March 2017.

Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor of Science (Honours) degree in
Finance from the City University of Hong Kong in December
1996, a Master’s degree in Practising Accounting from Monash
University, Australia in November 2001 and a Master of
Business Administration degree (Executive MBA Programme)
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 2010.
Mr. Wong is fellow members of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, and CPA Australia as well as an

associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

MS. HO LAI KUEN (“MS. HO”)

Financial Controller

Ms. Ho joined the Group in December 2014 and has over 15
years of auditing and accounting experience with international
audit firm and companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Ms. Ho holds a Bachelor Degree of Business
from Monash University, Australia and a master’s degree in
Accounting from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
(PRI LB & K2 PRC. Ms. Ho is an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute

of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
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The Board hereby presents the Report of the Directors and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the

Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the Year, the Company was an investment holding
company and its subsidiaries were principally engaged in travel
related and other travel related services, trading and retail of
jewellery products, provision of financial services, property

development and investment and investment holding business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the
Chairman’s Statement and the Management Discussion and
Analysis from pages 7 to 9 and pages 10 to 16 of this Annual
Report, respectively. These discussions form part of this

director’s report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 90 of this Annual

Report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the Year (2016: Nil).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements
and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on pages 191

to 192 of this Annual Report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 12 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the Year, the issued share capital of the Company
was changed from approximately HK$60.24 million with
12,047,043,097 ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each as at 1 January
2017 to approximately HK$63.75 million with 12,748,925,516
ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each as at 31 December 2017.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 25(b) to the consolidated

financial statements.

PERPETUAL CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES

Details of the issue of the perpetual convertible securities of
the Company during the Year are set out in note 26 to the

consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the Year, save as disclosed herein, the Company has not

entered into any equity-linked agreement.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”) or
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands where the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the Year are set out in the note 25 and on page 95

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution
to equity shareholders of the Company as at 31 December
2017 amounted to HK$317,742,000 (2016: HK$213,820,000),
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the purchase from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 99.2% of the total purchases and
purchase from the largest supplier included therein accounted
for 76.3% of the total purchases. The revenue of the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 15.9% of the total revenue and
the revenue of the largest customer included therein accounted

for 4.5% of the total revenue.

None of our Directors or any of their respective close associates
or, any Shareholder (so far as our Directors were aware, who
owned 5% or more of our issued share capital as at 31 December
2017), had any interest in any of our five largest suppliers or our

five largest customers in 2016 and 2017.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this Annual

Report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Shi Baodong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Huining (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 16 June 2017)
Mr. Wang Jianhua
Ms. Xu Yongmei (retired with effect from 16 June 2017)

Non-executive Director:

Ms. Song Sining (appointed on 16 June 2017)
Mr. Li Yankuan (retired with effect from 16 June 2017)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Dong Xiaojie
Mr. He Qi
Mr. Law Wang Chak, Waltery

In accordance with Articles 116 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if such number is not a multiple
of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years
at the annual general meeting. The Company’s forthcoming
circular for annual general meeting will contain the detailed

information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 17 to
19 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS” INDEMNITY

Pursuant to Article 179 of the Articles of Association, every
Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained
by him as a Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil
or criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour, or in which

he is acquitted.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange from each of the independent non-executive Directors
and the Company considers such Directors to be independent
since the date of then respective appointment date and as at the
date of this report, the Company still considers the independent

non-executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS
AND LETTER OF APPOINTMENTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory

compensation).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the general meeting of the Company held on 5 June 2012,
the shareholders approved the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “2012 Option Scheme”) and became effective on
11 June 2012. No share option has been granted under the 2012

Option Scheme since its adoption.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there was no contract
of significance entered into between the Company or its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries and any controlling

Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries for the Year.

For the Year, none of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
has entered into any contract of significance for the provision
of services by any controlling Shareholders or any of its

subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTORS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, none of the Directors
or entities connected with the Directors had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the

Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was set up for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration
of the Directors and senior management of the Group, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
of the Directors and senior management and comparable market

practices.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest
paid individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 respectively to the

consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report.

For the Year, Mr. Shi Baodong, Mr. Wang Jianhua, Ms. Xu
Yongmei and Mr. Li Yankuan agreed to waive director’s
remuneration of approximately HK$20,000, HK$620,000,
HK$283,671 and HK$9,151 (2016: Mr. Shi Baodong, Mr.
Wang Jianhua, Ms. Xu Yongmei and Mr. Li Yankua agreed to
waive director’s remuneration of approximately HK$20,000,
HK$620,000, HK$620,000, HK$20,000), respectively.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, none of the Directors
have waived their emoluments in relation to their services

respectively.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S LONG AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2017, the long and short positions of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company (the “Chief Executive”)
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) (i) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including long and short positions
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (ii) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered into the register maintained by the Company, or (iii) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in

Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Approximate percentage

Number of ordinary shares of shareholding

Name of director Capacity and underlying shares held in the Company

Shi Baodong Interest in a controlled 9,900,620,661 77.66%

corporation (Long Position) (“L”) (Note 1)
Shi Baodong Beneficial owner 130,239,145(L) (Note 2) 1.02%
312,729,948 (L) (Note 3) 2.45%

Dong Xiaojie Beneficial owner 2,014,285 (L) 0.02%

Law Wang Chak, Waltery Beneficial owner 420,000 (L) 0.003%

Notes:

1. Mr. Shi holds 100% equity interest in Orient Victory Real Estate Group Holdings Limited (‘OVRE”) and is deemed to be interested in the
9,900,620,661 shares held by OVRE under the SFO. The interests include the holding of (i) 7,837,902,880 ordinary shares, (i) the perpetual
convertible securities issued on October 2016 (the “2016 October PCS”) (convertible into 2,062,717,781 shares of the Company as at the date
of this Annual Report).

2. During the Year, Mr. Shi exercised 130,239,145 units of warrants of the Company accordingly, 130,239,145 ordinary shares were issued and
allotted by the Company to Mr. Shi.

3. Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated 30 March 2016 and also the Company’s circular dated 29 January 2016 in relation to

the issue of the perpetual convertible securities, the investment agreement of the Company dated 27 June 2015 as amended by a supplemental
agreement dated 8 January 2016 (the “Investment Agreement”) and Mr. Shi’s personal guarantee in relation to the obligations of the
Company, among other things, relating to the PCS. Mr. Shi would be interested in 312,729,948 shares of the Company upon the exercise of
the two put options in full as contemplated under the Investment Agreement by Outstanding Global Holdings Limited and Chance Talent
Management Limited respectively.



ORIENT VICTORY TRAVEL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
24 ANNUAL REPORT 2017

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors and the Chief Executive has or is deemed to have any long or
short position in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) that was required to be recorded in the register of the Company to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this Annual Report, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2017 were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors, or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in any other

body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS” INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the following entities had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Number of ordinary shares
and underlying shares held Approximate percentage
(L): Long Position of shareholding
Name of substantial shareholder Capacity (S): Short Position in the Company
Orient Victory Real Estate Group Beneficial Owner 9,900,620,661 (L) 77.66%
Holdings Limited"
Outstanding Global Holdings Limited® Beneficial Owner 620,333,793 (L)) 4.87%
(“OGH”) Person having a security interest in 5,926,054,470 (L) 46.48%
shares of the Company
Chance Talent Management Limited" Beneficial Owner 128,771,155 (L) 1.01%
(“CTM”) 128,771,155 (S) 1.01%
Person having a security interest in 5,926,054,470 (L) 46.48%
shares of the Company
Haitong International Investment Person having a security interest in 2,812,957,781 (L) 29.06%
Fund SPC - Fund 1 SP¥ shares and perpetual convertible

(“Haitong Fund”) securities of the Company
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Notes:

M. Shi (the chairman of the Board and an executive Director),
hold 100% equity interest in Orient Victory Real Estate Group
Holdings Limited.

OGH is wholly owned by China Huarong International
Holdings Limited, 88.10% of which is in turn owned by
Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd., which is in turn wholly owned
by China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. The aggregate
interests in 6,546,388,263 shares represent (i) 5,926,054,470
shares of the Company pledged by Orient Victory Real Estate
Group Holdings Limited to OGH as security; (ii) 436,375,000
shares of the Company beneficially held by OGH and (iii)
2016 March PCS (convertible into 183,958,793 shares of the
Company as at the date of this Annual Report).

CTM is a limited liability business company incorporated
under the laws of the British Virgin Islands and an indirectly
wholly-owned special purpose vehicle of CCB International
(Holdings) Limited. CCB International (Holdings) Limited
is an investment services flagship which is indirectly wholly-
owned by China Construction Bank Corporation, a joint-stock
company incorporated in the PRC and listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 0939)
and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601939).

The aggregate interest in 6,054,825,625 shares represent (i)
5,926,054,470 shares pledged by Orient Victory Real Estate
Group Holdings Limited to CTM as security; and (ii) the
2016 March PCS (convertible into 128,771,155 shares of the
Company as at the date of this Annual Report). The short
position of 128,771,155 shares of the Company represent a put
option from the perpetual convertible securities held by CTM.

Haitong Fund is an open-ended exempted segregated portfolio
company. The interest in 2,812,957,781 shares consists of
784,240,000 ordinary shares of the Company and the 2016
October PCS (convertible into 2,028,717,781 shares of the
Company as at the date of this Annual Report) which were
pledged by Orient Victory Real Estate Group Holdings Limited

to Haitong Fund as security.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Directors
were not aware of any persons (who were not Directors or
Chief Executive) who had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be
required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in

the register referred to therein.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, as at 31 December
2017, none of the Directors or any of their respective close
associates had engaged in or had any interest in any business
which causes or may cause any competition with the business of

the Group or any conflicts with the interests of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Connection Transaction

During the Year, the Group had the following partially exempt

connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(a) Establishment of Joint Venture

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
13 April 2017 in relation to the formation of a joint venture
company, namely Ningbo Meishan Bonded Port Shousheng
Jianyin Investment Management Company Limited* (B M L

PRABEE [ 15 R BRI E A PIAT FRAH]) (the “TV Company”).
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The Articles of the JV Company was signed on 13 April 2017.
Under the Articles, the total registered share capital of the JV
Company is RMB10 million, which will be contributed and held
as to 40% by Shenzhen Dongsheng Huamei Cultural Travel
Company Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) (“Dongsheng Huamei”), 30% by Guangzhou Tianlun
Wanyi Investment Limited (“Tianlun”) and 30% by Jian Yin
Ju Yuan Investment Management (Beijing) Limited (“]ian Yin
Ju Yuan”). The JV Company will engage in project investment,
investment management, asset management and investment
consultancy, subject to the approval of the local administration of
industry and commerce. The JV Company has already obtained
the business licence in the PRC on 16 May 2017.

As Tianlun is wholly-owned by Beijing Tourism Group Company
Limited* (b 3¢ & #0 jif€ 4% 45 B A B & £ A 7)) (a substantial
shareholder of our subsidiary) (“Beijing Tourism”) and Jian
Yin Ju Yuan is wholly-owned by CCB International (Holdings)
Limited (& #R B BX(# A B2 7)) (a substantial shareholder
of our subsidiary), each of Tianlun and Jian Yin Ju Yuan is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the formation of the JV Company pursuant to the
Articles constitutes a connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Since Tianlun and
Jian Yin Ju Yuan are connected persons only because of
their connection with the Company’s subsidiary and that the
formation of the JV Company pursuant to the Articles has been
approved by the Board and all the independent non-executive
Directors have confirmed that the formation of the JV Company
pursuant to the Articles is fair and reasonable, the formation
of the JV Company pursuant to the Articles is on normal
commercial terms or better and in the interests of the Company
and Shareholders as a whole, the formation of the [V Company
pursuant to the Articles is exempt from the circular, independent
financial advice and shareholders™ approval requirements

pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules.

(b) Investment in a Joint Venture Company

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 10 July 2017 in relation to an investment agreement
(the “Agreement”) entered into among, Donghui Hong Kong
Holdings Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) (“Donghui HK”), Beijing Yitian New Music
Cultural Development Company Limited* (4t 58 55 K H1 # &
ek EBRA A F]) (the “New JV Company”) and five
equity holders of the New JV Company (the “Investors”) in
relation to the capital injection into the registered capital of the
New JV Company by Donghui HK (the “Capital Injection”)
in accordance with the Agreement. One of the Investors is a

connected person of the Company.

Pursuant to the Agreement, three of the Investors will transfer
a total of 30% interest in the New JV Company to Donghui HK,
in consideration of Donghui HK injecting RMB15 million (the
“Consideration”) into the New JV Company. Upon completion,
the register capital of the New JV Company will be held as to
30% and 70% by Donghui HK and the Investors respectively.
Donghui HK will become the largest equity holder of the
New JV Company and the financial statement of the New JV
Company will be consolidated into the financial statement of
the Group. As a result, the New JV Company will become an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

The Board constantly reviews the Company’s business strategy
and continues to explore attractive business opportunities. The
New JV Company specialises in cultural and art exchange and
activities, and the Company intends to expand its travel-related
business with the New JV Company. The Board considers that
the capital injection can strengthen the capital base of the New
JV Company to cater for future development and business
growth, which will enhance the performance of the New JV
Company, and in turn will increase the overall profits of the

Group.
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As at the date of this Annual Report, the conditions precedent
under the Agreement have not been fulfilled in full and
completion of the Agreement will take place when all the

conditions precedent have been fulfilled.

As the spouse of Shi Shuyao ( % EI), one of the Investors, is
interested in 49% shareholding in an indirect non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Mr. Shi Shuyao is a connected
person of the Company at the subsidiary level pursuant to the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the entering into of the Agreement
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Given that (i) the Board
has approved the Agreement; and (ii) the independent
non-executive Directors have confirmed that the terms of the
Agreement are fair and reasonable, on normal commercial terms
and in the interests of the Company and its Shareholders as a
whole, the transaction contemplated under the Agreement are
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements only
but are exempt from the circular, independent financial advice
and independent shareholders™ approval requirements under
Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules.

(c) Financial Assistance

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
28 November 2017 in relation to the agreement entered into
between Donghui HK (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) and China Comfort are owned as to 49% by
the Group through Donghui HK and 51% by Beijing Tourism
dated 28 November 2017 in respect of the provision of financial
assistance to China Comfort (the “Loan Agreement”). Pursuant
to the Loan Agreement, Donghui HK agreed to provide
financial assistance to China Comfort by executing a charge
on deposit(s) in respect of the charge of the fixed deposit in
the name of Donghui HK with China Minsheng Banking
Corporation Limited, Hong Kong Branch (the “Bank”) in the
principal sum of approximately RMB27.72 million (equivalent

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

to approximately HK$33.25 million) in favour of the Bank as a
security for the provision of the loan facility in the sum of not
more than RMB27.72 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$33.25 million) to be advanced to China Comfort by way
of letter of credit to be provided by China Minsheng Banking
Corporation Limited, Beijing Branch. Beijing Tourism is a

connected person of the Company.

As Beijing Tourism is a substantial shareholder of an associate of
the Company and China Comfort is owned as to 51% by Beijing
Tourism, China Comfort is a subsidiary of Beijing Tourism
under Rule 14A.13 of the Listing Rules and thus a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the provision of financial
assistance under the Loan Agreement constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As such, the provision of financial assistance under the
Loan Agreement is subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but is exempt from the circular, independent
financial advice and shareholders” approval requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules since China
Comfort is a connected person only because of its connection
with the Company’s subsidiary and that the provision of financial
assistance under the Loan Agreement has been approved by the
Board and all the independent non-executive Directors have
confirmed that the terms of the Loan Agreement is fair and
reasonable, the provision of financial assistance under the Loan
Agreement is on normal commercial terms or better and in the

interests of the Company and Shareholders as a whole.
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Continuing Connected Transaction

During the Year, the Group had the following continuing
connected transaction which was subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules:

Reference is made to the Circular of the Company dated 12
August 2014. On 4 September 2014, the Company, Four Seas
(an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company)
and HK Four Seas entered into a service agreement (the “1st
Service Agreement”). Pursuant to which, HK Four Seas agreed
to provide certain information technology, trade mark licensing,
back office support and air ticket purchase agency services to
Four Seas for a monthly fee of HK$100,000 (in addition to the
agency fee payable by Four Seas to HK Four Seas) for a term of

three years commencing from 4 September 2014.

As HK Four Seas was/is a connected person of the Company,
the Ist Service Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constituted a continuing connected transaction of
the Company (the “CCT1”) which was subject to independent
shareholders™ approval. The extraordinary general meeting of
the Company for the CCT1 (the “CCT EGM”) was held on 29
August 2014 and the CCT1 with annual caps (for both service
fee and agency fee) at a total of HK$2.32 million, HK$7.29
million, HK$7.66 million and HK$5.36 million for the years
ended 31 December 2014, 2015 and 2016 and the year ending
31 December 2017, respectively, were approved during the
CCT EGM. The 1st Service Agreement was terminated on 30
November 2016 and a 2nd service agreement (the “2nd Service
Agreement”) was entered into between the same parties for
a term from 1 October 2016 to 3 September 2017 (both dates
inclusive) (the “CCT2”) with an annual cap (for both service
and ticket and agency fee) at a total of HK$109.58 million and
HK$309.36 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
31 December 2017 respectively. The 2nd Service Agreement
was terminated on 3 September 2017 and a 3rd service
agreement (the “3rd Service Agreement”) was entered into
between the same parties for a term from 4 September 2017
to 3 September 2018 (both dates inclusive) (the “CCT3”). The

scope of the services under the 1st Service Agreement, the

2nd Service Agreement and the 3rd Service Agreement are
fundamentally the same. The new annual caps (for both service
fee and ticket and agency fee) for the CCT3 were determined
at a total of HK$305.22 million, i.e. HK$95.67 million from
4 September 2017 to 31 December 2017 and HK$209.55
million from 1 January 2018 to 3 September 2018. The previous
annual caps have not been exceeded at any point in time. And
none of directors of the Company have any material interest
in the Service Agreement. The 3rd Service Agreement is a
continuation of the existing arrangements under the 1st Service

Agreement and the 2nd Service Agreement.

As (i) HK Four Seas is a connected person at the subsidiary
level of the Company; (ii) the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Service Agreement are on normal
commercial terms; and (iii) the Board (including all the
independent non-executive Directors) has approved the
CCT3 and confirmed that the terms of the CCT3 are fair and
reasonable and that the CCT3 are on normal commercial terms
and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as
a whole, according to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules, the
CCT3 contemplated under the 3rd Service Agreement are
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but
are exempt from the circular, independent financial advice and
shareholders™ approval requirements. For details, please refer to

the announcements of the Company dated 28 August 2017.

The aggregated amount paid by Four Seas to HK Four Seas
under the 2nd Service Agreement for the period from 1
January 2017 to 3 September 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$151.57 million and the aggregated amount paid by Four
Seas to HK Four Seas under the 3rd Service Agreement for the
period from 4 September 2017 to 31 December 2017 amounted
to approximately HK$68.95 million. The Company confirms that
the aggregated amount paid to HK Four Seas for the Year had

not exceeded the annual caps for the Year.

The Company confirms further that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.
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Confirmations from the independent non-
executive Directors and auditors of the Company

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions during the Year and confirmed that the

transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Group;
(ii) on normal commercial terms; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

KPMG, the auditor of the Company (the “Auditor”), was
engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor has issued
their unqualified letter containing the auditor’s findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in accordance with Main Board Listing
Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions, which do not constitute connected transactions,
made during the Year is disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated

financial statements.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The
Audit Committee presently comprises two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Law Wang Chak, Waltery (being
the chairman of the Audit Committee) and, Mr. He Qi and a

non-executive Director, namely Ms. Song Sining.

The Group’s annual results for the Year have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that the
preparation of such annual results complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate

disclosures were made.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
DIRECTORS” SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code contained in
the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made to all the
Directors and the details of the compliance are set out on page
35 of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
as in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the Year. The
Company will continue to review and enhance its corporate

governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on

pages 34 to 40 of this Annual Report.
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SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the Year, the Company had not involved in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim
of material importance is known to the Directors to be pending

or threatened against the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage
of public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted
under the Listing Rules, are held by the public at all times as of
the date of this Annual Report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Great Ascent Acquisition

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated
22 January 2018, in relation to the acquisition of 40% equity
interest in Great Ascent Limited (“Great Ascent”) of which the
Company, Orient Victory Group HK Holdings Limited (“OV
(HK)”) and Heng Sheng Xin Ye (Beijing) Asset Management
Company Limited* (5 % & 3% (b x0) & & % 8 A R A H)
(the “Heng Sheng”) as the purchasers, and Mr. Li Jun Bang as
the vendor entered into a share purchase agreement, pursuant
to which the Company will acquire from Mr. Li Jun Bang 40%
of the issued share capital of Great Ascent for the four-ninths
of the total considerations, including the equity consideration at
RMB75 million subject to adjustment according to the valuation
report by an independent valuer, and the settlement of the bank
loans(s) of RMB50 million and the other loan(s) of RMB60
million), to be paid or borne by the Company for four-ninths of
the total consideration (the “Great Ascent Acquisition”). Upon
completion of the Great Ascent Acquisition, Great Ascent will

become an associate of the Company.

As at the date of this Annual Report, due diligence process and

valuation on Great Ascent are still in progress.

Great Ascent is a company established in Hong Kong with
limited liability on 13 September 2007. Great Ascent wholly
owns Jiangsu Hongshan Sports Fitness Holiday Village Company
Limited* (VL %R AL 111 % 7 18 & B BAYH A H), a company
incorporated in the PRC, which has exclusive operation right in
Hongshan Sports Park and Great Ascent and its subsidiary are

primarily involved in tourism projects.

In addition, Mr. Shi Baodong, the chairman and an executive
Director, is also the director and ultimate shareholder of OV (HK).
Therefore, OV (HK) is a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules and it constitutes a connected transaction of the

Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Yiersan Acquisition

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated 22
January 2018, in relation to the acquisition of 40% equity interest
in Jiangsu Yiersan Real Estate Development Company Limited*
(Lt — =R E 8 A F) (the “Yiersan”), of which
the Company, Orient Victory Property Development Group
Co., Ltd.* (3 5 b Ho /€ BH 88 48 F A7 B A 7)) (the “OVPD")
and Heng Sheng as the Purchasers, Jiangsu Yinmao Holding
(Group) Company Limited* (7L #f 8 5% %5 It (2 ) A R 2
) (the “Yinmao”) as the purchasers and Mr. Nie Jiangqgiang as
the vendors entered into a share purchase agreement, pursuant
to which the Company will acquire from Yinmao 40% of the
issued share capital of Yiersan for 40% of the total consideration
of RMB50 million in aggregate for the entire equity interest of
Yiersan subject to adjustment according to the valuation report
by an independent valuer (the “Yiersan Acquisition”). Upon
completion of the Yiersan Acquisition, Yiersan will become an

associate of the Company.

Each of OV (HK) and OVPD is a connect person of the
Company. Yiersan is a company established in the PRC with a
paid-capital of RMB50 million on 17 March 2011. Yiersan and
its subsidiary are primarily involved in real estate development
and management; property services; real estate agencies;

construction consulting services and sales of building materials.

As at the date of this Annual Report, due diligence process and

valuation on Yiersan are still in progress.
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Compensation on Fire Accident

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 22 June
2017, on 8 June 2017, due to the Fire Accident, the Jewellery
Store was temporarily closed for urgent repair and reopened on
30 June 2017.

As previously disclosed, on 27 July 2017, the Group took legal
action against the Contractor at the People’s Court of Qinhuai,
Nanjing, PRC seeking damages for loss and damage of the
Group arising from the Fire Accident. On 14 February 2018,
the Group reached an agreement with the Contractor through
mediation by the court that the Contractor is required to pay the
Group a sum of RMB0.55 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$0.66 million) by 31 March 2018. Such payment was
received by the Group on 2 April 2018.

Distribution to holders of the 2016 October PCS
and 2016 March PCS

On 20 March 2018, the Company announced a distribution of
$7,940,900, calculated at the distribution rate of 6% per annum,
to the holders of the 2016 October PCS. The distribution will be
made on 24 April 2018.

On 28 March 2018, the Company distributed $5,100,000,
calculated at the distribution rate of 6% per annum, to the
holders of the 2016 March PCS.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

REPURCHASE, SALE OR
REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company did not redeem any of its Shares
listed on the Stock Exchange nor did the Company or any of its

subsidiaries purchase or sell any such shares.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
have been audited by KPMG who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Shi Baodong

Chairman

Hong Kong
29 March 2018
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The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasize accountability
and transparency to its Shareholders. Periodic review will be
made to the corporate governance practices to comply with the
regulatory requirements. After review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems during the Year,

the Company considered them effective and adequate.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
and implement various procedures to ensure inside information
remains confidential until the disclosure of such information
is appropriately approved, and the dissemination of such

information is efficiently and consistently made.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company had complied with all the code provisions as set
out in the CG Code throughout the Year.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD
PRACTICES

As at 31 December 2017, the Board consisted of seven Directors,
including the Chairman, Mr. Shi Baodong, who is also an
executive Director, two additional executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors. Not less than one-third of the Board is independent
non-executive Directors. A list of Directors and their respective

biographies are set out on pages 17 to 19 of this Annual Report.

The Board composition is regularly reviewed to ensure that it has
a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirement
of the business of the Group. A balanced composition of
executive Directors and non-executive Directors is maintained to
ensure independence and effective management. The Company
has satisfied the relevant provision of the Listing Rules in having
at least one of the independent non-executive Directors with
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

The appointment of Directors is recommended by the
Nomination Committee and approved by the Board based on
a formal written procedure and policy for the appointment
of new Director(s). When selecting potential candidates for
Director(s), their skills, experience, expertise, devotion of time
and contflicts of interests are the key factors. All the current non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
were appointed for a term of three years. All Directors (including
non-executive and independent non-executive Directors) are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years

in accordance with the Articles of Association.

The Board is collectively responsible for the formulation of the
Group’s strategy, overseeing the management of the business
and affairs of the Group. The Board delegates the day-to-day
management, administration and operations of the Group’s
business to the management of the relevant segments and
divisions. The management is responsible for the implementation
and adoption of the Company’s strategies and policies. The
delegated functions and tasks are periodically reviewed by the
Board.

Every newly appointed Director is provided with an induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure that he/he has
adequate understanding of the businesses and operations of the
Group. The Directors are also kept informed on a timely basis
of their responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules,
as well as other relevant statutory or regulatory requirements.
The Company also encourages its Directors to participate in

continuous professional development programmes.

All Directors have been fully consulted about any matters
proposed for inclusion in the agenda of regular meetings. With
the assistance of the executive Directors, the Chairman seeks to
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at board meetings and have received adequate and reliable

information in a timely manner.
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The Board held ten meetings in the Year:

Attendance
(Number of
Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend)
Executive Directors
Shi Baodong 10/10
Zhao Huining (appointed on 16 June 2017) /7
Wang Jianhua 10/10
Xu Yongmei (retired with effect from
16 June 2017) 3/3
Non-executive Director
Song Sining (appointed on 16 June 2017) /7
Li Yankuan (retired with effect from
16 June 2017) 3/3
Independent Non-executive Directors
Dong Xiaojie 9/10
He Qi 1010
Law Wang Chak, Waltery 10/10

Notices of at least fourteen days are given to the Directors
for regular meetings, while relevant documents are sent to
the Directors not less than three days before the intended
date of a board or board committee meeting. With respect to
other meetings, the Directors are given as much notice as is
reasonable and practicable in the circumstances. The Directors
can attend meetings in person or through other means of
electronic communication in accordance with the Articles
of Association. The company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) ensures that the procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are complied with. Minutes of
board meetings and board committees meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary and are available for inspection at any time

on reasonable notice by any Director.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Directors have full access to information on the Group and
are able to obtain independent professional advice whenever they
deem necessary. Memorandums are issued to the Directors from
time to time to update them with legal and regulatory changes
and matters of relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their

duties.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code
of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the

Directors.

Specific enquiries have been made with all the Directors, who
have confirmed that they complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December
2017.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the maintenance of a sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and has established the Group’s internal control policies
and procedures for monitoring the internal control system.
Such systems are designated to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.

Recognizing that a well-designed and effective system of internal
control is crucial to safeguard the assets of the Company and the
Shareholders investment and to ensure the reliability of financial
reporting as well as compliance with the relevant requirement of
the Listing Rules, a team, comprising qualified accountants and
management of the Company, has been organized to carry out

the internal audit function of the Company (the “TA Team”).
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Based on the assessment of risk exposure, the IA Team formulates
audit plans periodically and ensures the audit programs cover
key internal control areas of key operating subsidiaries for the
review by the Audit Committee at regular intervals. The scopes
and timing of audit review is usually determined according to risk

assessment.

Special reviews may also be performed on areas of concern
identified by management or the Audit Committee from time to
time. Communication channel has been established between the

TA Team and the members of Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee reviews the findings and recommendations
of the internal audit department and the senior management
in their meetings held at least twice a year and reports to the
Board on such review. In respect of the Year, the Board, through
the Audit Committee, reviewed the overall effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
covering financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions, which included the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes

and budget.

The Board believes that there are no material internal controls
deficiencies that may affect the Shareholders and an effective and
adequate risk management and internal control system is in place
to safeguard the assets of the Group. The Group will continue
to enhance the system to cope with the changes in the business

environment.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and ensure
that the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group is in accordance with statutory requirements and

applicable accounting standards.

The statement of the Auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the

Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 81 to 89 of this report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The consolidated financial statements for the Year was audited by
KPMG of which the term of office will retire, being eligible offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general

meeting as Auditor of the Company.

For the Year, the remuneration paid or payable to KPMG
in respect of audit services and non-audit services are of
approximately HK$2,140,000 and HK$551,000, respectively.

Details are set out below:

Fee paid/payable
HK$’000
Audit services
— statutory annual audit 2,140
Non-audit services
— due diligence fee 435
— other non-audit service 116

2,691
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ip Pui Sum (“Mr. Ip”), the Company Secretary, is an
external service provider to the Company and a Certified Public
Accountant practicing in Hong Kong. He has taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training as required by Rule 3.29

of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT FOR DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Directors must keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities. Each newly appointed Director receives an
induction package covering the Group’s businesses and the
statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed

company.

Apart from updates on regulatory changes and governance
developments provided by the Company, the Directors are
encouraged to participate in professional trainings and seminars
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skill. During the
Year, training provided by external professional parties. Further,
the Company continuously provided reading materials and other
updated information regarding latest development of the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulations to Directors for their

reference and studying,

The Company encourages the senior management to improve
their professional knowledge by attending the external seminars
and participate in the internal trainings provided by the

Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the Year, the Audit Committee consists of two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Law Wang Chak, Waltery
(Chairman of the Audit Committee) and Mr. He Qi and one non-

executive Director, Ms. Song Sining.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee, in accordance with
its terms of reference, which are substantially the same as those
under the CG Code, include the review of the Group’s financial
reporting system and internal control procedures, review of
financial information of the Group, review of half-yearly and
annual results of the Group, unless expressly addressed by a
separate risk committee addressed by a separate risk committee,
or the Board itself, review of the risk management and internal
control systems, the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit
function, and its other duties under the CG Code, and review of

the relationship with the auditors.

The Audit Committee has also been delegated by the Board to
be responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
under the CG Code, which includes developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and make recommendations to the Board, reviewing and
monitoring the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s policies and practices compliance with the
legal and regulatory requirements, and review the Company’s

compliance with the CG Code.
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The Audit Committee had two meetings in the Year in which
representatives of the management were present to review the
interim and final results, the interim report and annual report
and other financial, internal control and corporate governance

matters. The auditor was present in one of the meetings.

Attendance

(Number of

Meetings attended/

Audit Committee Eligible to attend)
Law Wang Chak, Waltery (Chairman) 2/2
He Qi 2/2
Song Sining (appointed on 16 June 2017) 1/1
Li Yankuan (ceased on 16 June 2017) 1/1

The Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s annual and interim
results for the Year, the internal and external reports on the
risk management, term of reference, internal control and the

corporate governance pOlle

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee performs the remuneration
function under the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee
consists of two executive Director, namely Mr. Shi Baodong
and Mr. Zhao Huining, and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Dong Xiaojie (Chairman of the

Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Law Wang Chak, Waltery.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee, in
accordance with its terms of reference, which are substantially
the same as those under the CG Code, include determining
the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors,
assessing performance of executive Directors, approving the
terms of executive Directors’ service contracts, and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of

individual executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee had held two meetings in the

Year and the attendance record is set out below:

Attendance

(Number of

Meetings attended/

Remuneration Committee Eligible to attend)
Dong Xiaojie (Chairman) 2/2
Shi Baodong 2/2
Zhao Huining (with effect from 15 July 2017) 0/0
Law Wang Chak, Waltery 2/2

The Remuneration Committee reviewed the policies for the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior management,
including basic salaries, discretionary performance bonus and
other emoluments, based on skills, knowledge, involvement
in the Company’s affairs and performance of the individual
executive Director and senior management with reference
to the Company’s performance and profitability, as well as
industry practice. Directors” fees for all Directors are subject to

Shareholders” approval at general meeting.

Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-pocket expenses incurred
in connection with the performance of their duties including

attendance at board meetings and committee meetings.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee performs the nomination function
under the CG Code. The Nomination Committee consists of
two executive Director, namely Mr. Shi Baodong (Chairman of
the Nomination Committee) and Mr. Zhao Huining, and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. He Qi and Mr.
Law Wang Chak, Waltery.
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The principal duties of the Nomination Committee, in
accordance with its terms of reference, which are substantially
the same as those under the CG Code, include review on the
structure and composition of the Board, identification of suitably
qualified Board candidates, and determining the policy for the

nomination of Directors.

The Nomination Committee had held two meetings in the Year

and the attendance record is set out below:

Attendance

(Number of

Meetings attended/

Nomination Committee Eligible to attend)
Shi Baodong (Chairman) 2/2
Zhao Huining (with effect from 15 July 2017) 0/0
He Qi 2/2
Law Wang Chak, Waltery 2/2

The Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, adopted a formal written procedure
and policy for the appointment of new Directors, assessed the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and made
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-

appointment of the Directors.

Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-pocket expenses incurred
in connection with the performance of their duties including

attendance at board meetings and committee meetings.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Information is communicated to the Shareholders mainly through
the Company’s corporate communications (such as interim and
annual reports, announcements and circulars), annual general
meetings and other general meetings, as well as disclosure on the

website of the Company.

Interim reports, annual reports and circulars are sent to the
Shareholders in a timely manner and are available on the website
of the Company. The Company’s website provides Shareholders

with the corporate information of the Group.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company
to enable them to make enquiries with respect to the Company’s
affairs. Shareholders can also send their enquiries to the
Company through these channels or contact Union Registrars
Limited, the branch share registrar of the Company, in case of

enquiries about their respective shareholdings in the Company.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the Company’s registered office in
Hong Kong at 2603, 26th Floor, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. Shareholders may also send
such enquiries and concerns to ovchina@sjzdsjt.com, an email

specifically set up by the Company for investor communications.

Annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM(s)”) allows the
Directors to meet and communicate with Shareholders. The
Company ensures that Shareholders’ views are communicated
to the Board. The chairman of the AGM proposes separate
resolutions for each issue to be considered. Members of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee and the external auditor also attend the AGMs to
answer questions from Shareholders. AGM proceedings are
reviewed from time to time to ensure that the Company follows
good corporate governance practices. Notices of AGMs are
distributed to all Shareholders at least 20 clear business days
prior to the respective AGMs. The accompanying circular sets
out the details of each proposed resolution and other relevant
information as required under the Listing Rules. Voting results

are posted on the Company’s website on the day of the AGM.
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The Articles of Association set out the procedures for the
Shareholders to convene general meetings, to move a resolution
at general meetings and propose a person for election as a
Director are available at the Company’s corporate website

http:/Avww.orientvictory.com.hk.

Extraordinary general meetings of the Company (“EGM(s)”)
shall be convened on the requisition of any one Shareholder
which is a recognized clearing house (or its nominee) or any
two or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 3 months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may
convene such meeting, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The attendance record of the Directors at the AGM held on 16
June 2017 and EGM held on 16 June 2017 respectively is set out

below:

AGM EGM
(Number of  (Number of
Meetings Meetings
attended/ attended/
Eligible to Eligible to
attend) attend)
Executive Directors
Shi Baodong (Chairman) 11 11
Zhao Huining
(Chief Executive Officer)”
(appointed on 16 June 2017) N/A N/A

Wang Jianhua 1/1 1/1
Xu Yongmei (retired with effect

from 16 June 2017) N/A N/A
Non-executive Director
Song Sining (appointed on

16 June 2017) N/A N/A
Li Yankuan (retired with effect

from 16 June 2017) N/A N/A
Independent Non-executive

Directors
Dong Xiaojie 0/1 0/1
He Qi /1 /1
Law Wang Chak, Waltery 1/1 1/1

%

Mr. Zhao was appointed as Chief Executive Officer with effect from
15 July 2017.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KPMG!

To the shareholders of Orient Victory Travel Group Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Orient
Victory Travel Group Company Limited (formerly known as
Orient Victory China Holdings Limited) (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 190,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2017, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPAs Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

J3H o % i 55 JH

I SR T o R AR G AN Fy SRR B > R BRI A S
e i w2 B A I o JE SU IR R AR AN A A R A
B R Mt LR R AT R BRI o BRAAS i i e B
ROHBNE I -

Refer to Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes 2(e) and 2(j).

i B B R I i 14 R B E2(e) Re2() B B it B

The Group’s interest in an associate relates to its 49% equity
interest in China Comfort Tourism Group Company Limited
(“China Comfort”) (formerly known as China Comfort Travel
Group Company Limited), a group which operates in the travel
market in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), which
was acquired by the Group in 2015.

TR T ) RO R A 2 B R M R — U AR WO A
JROMIR R AT B =) ([ e IR L) (A v I B 47
AR A R AT]) 49%HIRERS o Fh RO — FO 3
ARSI ([ eb e ) it i 455988 2 i 4R 1 o

In order to apply the equity method of accounting, it is necessary
at the time of acquisition of the interest in an associate to
ascertain the fair values of that associate’s identifiable net assets,
by adopting the same concepts and procedures as are used at the
time of acquisition of a subsidiary. In the case of the acquisition of
the equity interest in China Comfort, the Group concluded that
the identifiable net assets of China Comfort mainly comprised
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives which represent
China Comfort’s trademark and distribution network.

i FE PV RE AR AL 5 > T SEER PR 1R 77 WA Bt J 2 ) P
JHRIE RN SR PP > 7 I B 2 v Bl A Il S 2 24 ] Y T
PR A A A S o SO P B R R > BRI
o P R RO 2 T R e SR 8 S v
B (v RO R R B B A ) FRALR o

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment for the Group’s
interest in China Comfort included the following:

TR Rl R 2 A S AR MR B 2 ) AR i A 7 A
WHEU TS -

e evaluating management’s identification of the CGU and the
assets allocated to the CGU and assessing the methodology
adopted by management of the Group in the preparation
of the discounted cash flow forecast with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

o Al A L S B A AT ) Bt D B
AERLAL 5 AREBUT et R R ZEOR - G 4R AT B A
A B BB i B PR R PR FH A 05 98

e challenging the discounted cash flow forecast prepared by
management of the Group by comparing data therein with
the relevant data, including forecast revenue, cost of sales and
other operating expenses, contained in the financial budget
of China Comfort which was approved by management of
China Comfort, and taking into account our understanding,
experience and knowledge of the travel industry in the PRC
and the future business plans for China Comfort;

o FETATRAM B v PR AT S P BRAR - RSBRAJ M r R R
AR ACSEBS wt ] > Tl 55 4 PO A L o A L P M B0 B
BREFEBIGE b G TR Z O ~ 8B A B HE At A8 B 52
S5 BRLACK v [ R AR L g e 4 B 25 YRR R R OB
TR 5
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
M ST AZ M B

B S R R IH ()

Refer to Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes 2(e) and 2(j).

i B R B IR M ik 14 R B 2E2(e) e 2() B B il BUARE

As these intangible assets are not recognised at fair value
by China Comfort, the Group applies accounting policies
consistent with the Group’s policies in order to identify whether
any adjustments need to be made by the Group on an ongoing
basis when applying the equity method to measure the Group’s
share of China Comfort’s profit/loss after acquisition. This
includes assessing the intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is
any indication of impairment.

FH T A B RS DL 2 o SR ol 2 S ST R > AR P2
JH S 5 P — S BOR > DA A i S e R A M PR 2
it i A I AN e R AR R AR R R 1 T
e % o I B A R B H BRI 5 Iy 36 E A A 5 ) 3%
iy A ST S A AT I B A

As at 31 December 2017, management of the Group performed
an impairment assessment of the intangible assets of China
Comfort when applying the equity method of accounting in
respect of the Group’s interest in China Comfort. Management
of the Group concluded that the business of China Comfort as
a whole comprises a single cash-generating unit (the “CGU”)
and the recoverable amounts of the intangible assets were
determined based on a value in use calculation by preparing
a discounted cash flow forecast for the operations of China
Comfort.

PEF-CETTA=S—H > BAREEAE B b R
FIRIRIE 2 122 FEURE 2 P AZ LI > S v R RO P JHE 2 8 i HEA T T 8k
PG o BRI BRERR A > F I RO A R S B A 2 —
B s s B > T i [ < e A oo R O F) S B B
TR SR B B AR o

e comparing the actual results of the current year with
management’s assumptions and estimates in the discounted
cash flow forecast for the previous year to assess the historical
accuracy of the management’s forecasting process;

o VMR ACAR L BT X A BELAE B R R A B S A B B i T
ZAB BB AG T > DAl A BRI A4 B e B S P
'lﬁf;

e comparing the long-term growth rate for the travel industry
with external market data and, with the assistance of our
internal valuation specialists, evaluating the discount rate
applied in the discounted cash flow forecast by comparing it
with those of comparable companies in the same industry;
and

o TEBRAM P Al (B RS A T Bl T 3 PR AR AT SE A R AN R R
SEAMH T 55 BehE o WA BB B BB AR A Z BB R
T5 b Fe B R 47 28 VT bl e A4 ) Z M B 5 I

e obtaining from management of the Group sensitivity analyses
of the key assumptions adopted in the discounted cash
flow forecast, assessing the impact of changes in the long-
term growth rate for the travel industry and the discount
rate applied on the conclusions reached in the impairment
assessment and considering whether there were any indicators
of management bias in the selection of key assumptions.

o D4R A B R A IO BB AT A TR v R P R ARk
FRRBRR A S > TP HEOE S8 R T R S i £ FH Y B B
REACEHRAE R S5 AR > DS B B p s R A
FAAEATA 4 P R 2
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Key audit matters (continued)

IoH o A Wt SR (A7)

Equity accounting for the Group’s interest in an associate (Continued)

R i VA% TR SR R WG 2% 2wl RO R AR (A1)

Refer to Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes 2(e) and 2(j).

i 2 A B IRE M AL 14 R B2 (e) Re2() 1 Bt BR

The Key Audit Matter

[3F o N

We identified equity accounting for the Group’s interest in
China Comfort as a key audit matter because the assessment
of potential impairment of the intangible assets of China
Comfort could have a significant impact on the Group’s share
of net assets of China Comfort and because the assessment
of potential impairment of China Comforts intangible assets
is based on a discounted cash flow forecast which includes a
number of assumptions and estimates, particularly in relation to
forecast revenue, cost of sales and other operating expenses, the
long-term growth rate for the travel industry and the discount
rate applied, all of which require the exercise of significant
judgement and could be subject to management bias.

FRAHEAE A5 PA% ST R SR B i [ R Y R i 51) 2 B S 2 it o
TE > R il v R R SRE TS S 7 Y A 3B 5 4 P B A o
o0 MR V0 S P A TR S o I EL P A R R A B B B
TRBEB > 07 B AR R 2 AR B A5 > 4B I 2tk
A~ SRR AR EAAR A RS~ HRAEAT SRR 1R ST = 0 Bl

Bl > 35 R EOA B B w] B4R R4 SRR S

How the matter was addressed in our audit
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Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements

and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
P8 S A B
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Responsibilities of the directors for
the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
M ST AZ M B
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause

the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Wan Chi Yau, Charles.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

A iR AR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #&& _ZF—LAFE+_H=1—H IL4FEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars (‘HKS$”)) (PA#IG ([¥58]) Fl7R)

Notes
Pt

REVENUE A 4
Cost of sales Bl RLAR
Gross profit Ecyill
Other income HABB A 5
Selling expenses Ei
Administrative expenses e H
Share of loss of an associate JEAG T 42 A | s 4R 14
Loss from operations F&=g 2]
Finance income/(costs) MBI (BH) 6(a)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BBt i M 458 6
Income tax FiigHi 7
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AAERE IR
Attributable to: FEAG Ty :

Equity owners of the Company A vl RERE A A

Non-controlling interests BRIy £
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AR JE R
LOSS PER SHARE (53id A
Basic and diluted T T 11

The notes on pages 99 to 190 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.

264,570

(239,735)

24,835
4,373
(5,872)
(67,738)
(13,517)

(57,919)
1,924

(55,995)
(36)

(56,031)

(46,846)
(9,185)

(56,031)

(HKO0.46 cents)
(0.46¥# il

2016
ZE2 A

$000

Tt

109,417

(82,150)

27,267
5,089
(6,389)
(56,756)
(148,374)

(179,163)
(14,902)

(194,065)

(194,065)

(191,816)
(2,249)

(194,065)

(Restated)
(FEHk)

(HK1.64 cents)
(1.64¥A4l)

SRO0E F 190 H FT kMl sk A A5 G B R =2 —FB A ©



ORIENT VICTORY TRAVEL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

91

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Aok o 1E 2 S LAt 2 T i 2 R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LE+ZA=1—HIL4EE
(Expressed in HK$) (PA#ICH7R)

2017 2016
e Sl i RN
$°000 $°000
Tt
LOSSFORTHEYEAR &%@FE® (56,031) R (194,065)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  A4EBE H A 2 i 2s (BRBii%)
FOR THE YEAR (AFTER TAX)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently — HEE G EI A LR ZIHH ¢
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of YA BEAN L7 B s e = I Se 25 %
financial statements of foreign operations (24,505)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  AC4E ¥ 4> i Wi &5 4848
FOR THE YEAR (25,758) (218,570)
Attributable to: JEAG T -
Equity owners of the Company A FIRERSHEA N (16,872) (216,078)
Non-controlling interests ERAlY £ (8,886) (2,492)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  ACAF B 4 i Wi 5 848
FOR THE YEAR (25,758) (218,570)

The notes on pages 99 to 190 form part of these consolidated SRO9H F A 190 H Fr s B R AAR G A B ik Z — iy -

financial statements.



92

ORIENT VICTORY TRAVEL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A o A BIR LA

As at 31 December 2017 A —F—tHE+_H=+—H

(Expressed in HK$) (PA¥ICHI7R)

Notes

Bt ik
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEF B &
Property, plant and equipment Wk - Wb KBt 12
Interest in an associate AT A W) Z A g 14
Intangible assets ST B 15
CURRENT ASSETS BB A
Inventories ety 16
Trade receivables JRE W BT 5 ik 17
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AT KT ~ #&4x K H At RE WOk 18
Restricted bank deposits SZ R ERAT AR 19
Cash and cash equivalents Bl R Bl S H 20
CURRENT LIABILITIES wB AR
Trade payables JEAS B 5 MRk 21
Other payables and accruals oAty A ok B M 2 22
Short-term borrowings T K 23
NET CURRENT ASSETS - wn®EESEE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT AR I B £

LIABILITIES

The notes on pages 99 to 190 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.

2017
Bt
$°000

2,020
399,271
16,388

417,679

63,791
28,159
15,249
43,448
357,696

508,343

33,391
22,655
8,948

64,994

443,349

861,028

2016

ZE AN
$000
Tt

1,513
383,519
9,011

394,043

16,010
25,804
19,301
33,393
334,627

429,135

28,839
40,882
9,617

SRO9H AR 190 FU T Rk A A A & B R —Hb Ay -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A BB IR DL AR

As at 31 December 2017 ¥ —F—tHE+_H=1—H

(Expressed in HKS) (PA#ICHI7R)

Notes
B
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEUi Bh £ 1%
Deferred tax liabilities PR AEFIE A A5 24
NET ASSETS &
CAPITAL AND RESERVES i A B At 25
Share capital %N 25(b)
Perpetual convertible securities TR R B8 26
Reserves fit
Total equity attributable to equity AN FIREZS B N EAL
owners of the Company TR AR 2 REAE
Non-controlling interests Jede Bt
TOTAL EQUITY &N EE L

2017 2016
—ZF ZEAE
$°000 $000
T

2,704 1,487
858,324 742,353
63,745 60,235
396,402 396,556
391,625 281,746
851,772 738,537
6,552 3,816
858,324 742,353

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

29 March 2018.

HEF - \FEZA AU A EE SRR R AT 5 -

Shi Baodong
ARBE

Chairman

T

The notes on pages 99 to 190 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Zhao Huining
fiRCE

Director

#H

SROOE 2190 E P sl Ml sk B Ahrt A A s e 2 — 34 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 H_E
(Expressed in HKS) (PAUSICHI7R)

=

A

Larg

2

N

2N

W,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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Aok R i S B

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % % —L4E+"H

T H IR

(Expressed in HKS) (PA#SIEHI7R)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

e Bl aimER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #& & _ZF—LAFE+ZH=1—H IL4FEE

(Expressed in HK$) (PA¥ICH7R)

Notes
Bk
Operating activities KEWmH)
Loss before tax FRBL TSR
Adjustments for: P
Depreciation e 6(c)
Loss on disposal of property, tEME - W7 Bt
plant and equipment, net 18 6(c)
Interest income FLEYA 5
Finance (income)/costs A (Wﬁ)/ E-di 6(a)
Share of loss of an associate JRRE A B A W) R 1R 14
Changes in working capital: BEE )

(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,

75 G,/ Wb
HEVCELS SR () W
e Z e e

deposits and other receivables FIEW A (FE)
Increase in trade payables JEAS 52 2 s S
(Decrease)/increase in other payables At JRE A T B 2R
and accruals (b)),
Cash used in operations SETEE T 2 B4
Tax paid: ELATBLIA
Hong Kong Profit Tax paid EL A s I A5 ol
Overseas tax paid B AMBLIE
Net cash used in operating activities KB TRB) BT 2 Bl

The notes on pages 99 to 190 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.

2017
—F—LH
$000

(55,995)

635

29
(4,373)
(1,924)
13,517

(47,781)

(2,305)

17,100
4,552

(2,420)

(78,965)

36

(78,929)

2016
ZEAF
$000
T
(194,065)
270
54
(5,089)
14,902

148,374

7,514
3,749

(1,026)
3,189

3,885

(18,243)

SEO9H A 190 F B M ok 2 AR & M B ke 2 — WA
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HAEBERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E —F—LE+ZH=1—HIL4EE
(Expressed in HKS) (PA#SIEHI7R)

2017 2016
e S i O TR N
Notes $°000 $°000
Fit Tt
Investing activities REED
Payments for the purchase of property, WEEYIZE - W5 Rkt Z
plant and equipment FKIH (1,139) (1,300)
Payment for the acquisition of subsidiaries, i B8 A 5] 3K EH
net of cash acquired (Fn B O WO B 43 ) 27 (6,138) (7,088)
Prepayments for acquisition and WAL e oo B e A ] 2
establishment of subsidiaries FE Ak IE (10,675) (11,849)
Net increase in restricted bank deposits SZ B ST Ak 48 3 (10,055) (35,394)
Interest received [l @ilPss 5,295 3,749
Net cash used in investing activities WE B P 2 Bl (22,712) (51,882)
Financing activities A&
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings SRAT B HA A R BT A5 2k T 9,236 11,405
Repayment of bank and other borrowings TERRERAT B AL R (10,652) (380,769)
Proceeds from issuance of new shares upon A7l 52 RS FF 351 T
exercise of warrants A A 3H 25(b)(i) 135,207 3
Proceeds from issuance of new shares under A/ B85 B 4% 554758 B A
open offer eSO 36,281
Net proceeds from issuance of perpetual BT TR RS S5
convertible securities RES e 26 412,448
Distributions paid to holders of perpetual IR 8 545 N2 UR
convertible securities (20,992) =
Contributions from non-controlling interests  JF 2 R 7 A2k 11,622 =
Interest paid CASFILE (631) (776)
Net cash generated from financing activities Bl ¥ 1 B & 4 2 3l &5 8 123,790 78,592

The notes on pages 99 to 190 form part of these consolidated SRO9H F A 190 H Fr s B R AAR G A B ik Z — iy -

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HAEBERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E _F—L4E+ZH="1—HIL4EE
(Expressed in HKS) (PAU#SICHI7R)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents B4 S B 4 546 JE H 8% i3 51

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—H—HZBER
B&%FHIEAH
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes M 2 5 )y > 5 28

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December AT _H=1—HZ
HE kB &% EEH

2017

e

Notes $°000
Pt

20 334,627

920

20 357,696

2016
TR
$000
Tt
8,909

326,605
(887)

334,627

The notes on pages 99 to 190 form part of these consolidated SRO9H B 190 H P sl by At 5 A B ke 2 — B oy o

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ot T A 25 O M ik

(Expressed in HKS unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZSAFEW » & HIL#ICHIZR)

Corporate information

Orient Victory Travel Group Company Limited (formerly
known as Orient Victory China Holdings Limited)
(the “Company”) is an exempted limited company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered
office of the Company is located at P. O. Box 31119
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands. The
Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the sale of air tickets and other
travel related services, trading and retail of jewellery
products, provision of financial services, property
development and investment, and other investment

holding business.

Slgmﬁcant accountmg p()hmes
Statement of com])]iancc

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (the
“Companies Ordinance”). These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

»aE R

TR I3 ik A 4 1O A A ) i R M5 v B e i A PR A
7)) ([AS 2 ) 1) % — PR BH S 0 oy kA AR AL 2 3
B0 PR A ] o A 2 ] A R 3 8 AL P, O. Box
31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay
Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands ° VN
AT BB EH SR ARAR (B 2
FMR B o

AATF R ICHHE AT (TASEM ) LR HEENE
B JEAt ik e AH B 56 5 ~ BRTCE i B o 4 - At
SR RES - D i B B S 45 R DL B At 45 e M
% o

ERGFEOR

Ll

7 B 7 AR AR U Wt A (17 9 & a2
7 1) AU B P A 30 i B s e R ) (17 v S
e T | > 5 A5 64 B A A A 3 A o
Wk A A e ((Fdaa gl &
B o AW ARG AR L B A w e (2w ik
1l 1) 3 P 45 5 WA A Y A B 5 R N A 5 A B
A2 i 27 L BRI (T ki st A 1) 3 FH 5 8% 5k SR L
E o AR RN Z R BOREE N T -

U Sl A2 6 TR A T AT R ARG AT A W B
o ) 5 T % S o R AR 4 P BT A
PR T PR LR A o FFRER(c) BRAE B R % S
) i S > A BLAT B A o 1 ) S A 4 A
AR A B 5 e R R T IBSRAE RY
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 N\
s

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BRI B 7EW » B RIL#IGEIR)

(b)

B 285 e A Fi

Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 comprise the Group and the Group’s

interest in an associate.

These financial statements are presented in HK$ and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (“$°000”)

except when otherwise indicated.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the

financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty

are discussed in Note 3.

2

(b)

EREGBR (H)
SR 85 7 2 o LBk

BEZ LT AZTHIMEEZ G WH
R QAR AR B AR T G 2 4 W) Z A o

W25 A REWI AL - AR BRI U BRI > T f
SRR BEEREEZ T (Tl -

A LB 5 R A P < it AR U R S A o

A LR 7 T o ) 2 B R o A L
ZEAE VTS B BOR M % B R A~ U A
S BH S g P - A B ABLEE o A B B Bt
T3 HE TP 08 A A 05 e 2 JEURY A il A 0L A 5 TG B A
FA PRI o A A A5 SR ) 2 ) S e A M e Y
AR > T % 54 e i e DA A SLAUB AR 2 o TR MR AS
RATREAR BT % S At o

il B A BRI e 8 A 5 AR o A st A st Z BT
e BT A at 2 W A 2 B > A G AT it
%) TRt G o D A T S B BT R AU ] > B
TRMETT B AR A Tt =

L P A A i Y S R B4R o L
Bk MR Al > DR R AN R Z
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S B A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BRI H7EW » & RIL#IGEIR)

Significant accounting policies
O, s
(continued)

Changes in accounting policies
C C

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. None of these impact
on the accounting policies of the Group. However,
additional disclosure has been included in Note 20(b) to
satisfy the new disclosure requirements introduced by
the amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows:
Disclosure initiative, which require entities to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash flows
and non-cash changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interest either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

9

EREREOR (4)

&t BUOREE)

AU B2 6 A AR 2 T A o A i v ) 2 48
AT WS IERT A AR R B W R S B AR e
SEAETTMER AR B 7 B BOR A AR AT AT R o R
T T B RE20(D) 3 A H AN 8 AR & 7 9 17
WP ETHE « BB td7e  peaF At H WIS W iR
B > SR BRI B iR - DA B R O 4 R
P B A 2 A ) > WEB RS
B RIEB )

7445 8] SIS AT T o AR BAT w30 A 2
AT R SRR o

ol I8 2 W) B 2 T i

FEF J 2 ] i A 8 L e o % T o A R I BB A A
2 B 7R I ol A T A T S [ B A > B
S 1 955 ECREE Oy 2B [l A > DD B O B
A TEHIRE o WAl A SR L 5 AR ) IRF 855 8 AR 4R
P e LAt N B 5 A A T ERER)

7 B i 2 ) 2 B Eh A A 1 R B 4 2 OB A AR
BN HEEGMEA L H 2L o LEA
Ox ) [ 22 B e A i B T T 2 ) LA B~ A2 o BB
LI DL AT Ao oA 3 B v A A R £ D S A W A
WP o 4R AN A ] [ 22 5 A i R S B s 4R ) 1
A SIS HHY B 90 4 P D0 T > DA B SE  OR A B M
it A 1 ) 75 A S -

FEFe IR AR 2 i 3 I phy AR O ) L o e A 1
Ja 2 T RERR > T A AR I S 35 A [) e B A S 2
AN T S AT ] ] 2L A A R 8 % <5 A i R 4
AF Fr 4 i BB 2800 0 FE 0 O BUOMAK o B
SESERE A OF > ACGE I AT 4R % 4 P A sl 4 JR P 2
Fe Al B 2 ) JHE TR S AL B 1 it A ) S 5 e
%o
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22 N\
s

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BRI B 7EW » B RIL#IGEIR)

B 285 e A Fi

Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity owners

of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to

goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see Note 2(i))
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate (see Note 2(e)) or joint

venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less

impairment losses (see Note 2(j)).

2

(d)

EREGBR (H)
ol J 2 ) S TR e B i ()

T e JB Ml 25 7 A A B 5 IR L A P9 I IR A 2 o 5]
7 o AH B 20 T HE 2R B A N HE AN T A HE 25 43 BH 2
B o Jef5e IBERE S A AR I 2 SR A > A AR B R 2R R B
Ao E R e B At 2 T WL 2 2 P DA e JR A i BELAK 4y
)RR B\ 23 WO A AR B4R A AR A T WA 2 A8
ZIiRIR -

ACHR B — 5K B 2 W WO RE AR S ) > AN A 5] B
RAETIRE > J DABE 5 52 55 AR o Sl 3 A £ M 2 v 4
JBe B e F M i Py < AT W > DL WA R B 2
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i AR 45 0 O 25 — K I i 24 Rl 2 P L > LS A i
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FOR e R I REE H 2 A PR o T % AR AU A
FIME SR A (RIRE2G)) B RHER 2 AFAH »
Chn3d FH ) 8 Ui s I 2 m] (LM RE2(e)) B8
AR ZBERA

T FE S A B 2 B TR A A W B B R TR N > %
JRASEIRAG s 1 (SLRFRE2(j)) FR



ORIENT VICTORY TRAVEL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S B A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BRI H7EW » & RIL#IGEIR)

Significant accounting policies
) C C
(continued)

Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the

financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share
of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment
(if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment. Any acquisition—date excess over cost,
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the investee’s and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investee’s other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the

associate.

9

EREREOR (4)
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Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Associate (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they

are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial

recognition of a financial asset (see Note 2(i)).
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Significant accounting policies
) C
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses (see
Note 2(j)). The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working

condition and location for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Furniture and leasehold 10% to 25%, not exceeding

improvements the lease terms
Machinery and equipment  10% to 25%
Motor vehicles 20% to 33.3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful
lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year

end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset.
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Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see
Note 2(j)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over

the assets” estimated useful lives.

Both the period and method of amortisation are

reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that
the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is
reviewed annually to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful
life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change
in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for prospectively from the date of change
and in accordance with the policy for amortisation of

intangible assets with finite lives as set out above.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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Significant accounting policies
) C
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to profit

or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial

assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment (see Note 2(j)). Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in profit
or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised

in profit or loss.
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EREGBR (H)

2 Significant accounting policies 2
C

(continued)
(j)  Impairment of assets G4) P DA
(i) Impairment of investment in equity securities (1) i B A i 5 B 45 DA B R sk I Ui AL

and receivables

Investment in equity securities and receivables
that are stated at cost or amortised cost are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptey or other financial

reorganisation;

— significant changes in the market,
economic or legal environment that have

an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity

instrument below its cost.
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Significant accounting policies
) s C
(continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investment in equity securities

and receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

— For investment in an associate accounted
for under the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements (see
Note 2(e)), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with Note
2(j)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with
Note 2(j)(i).

- For trade and other receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and
have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to the collective

group.
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2 Significant accounting policies

(continued)

()  Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment of investment in equity securities

and receivables (continued)

- If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the assets carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been

recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivable and other receivables
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are

recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies
s C
(continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:
- property, plant and equipment;
= intangible assets; and

— investments in subsidiaries and an
associate in the Company’s statement of

financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for intangible assets that have indefinite useful
lives, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication

of impairment.
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Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e.

a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of the assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or

value in use (if determinable).
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Significant accounting policies
. C
(continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

= Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the

recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at

the end of the financial year (see Notes 2(j)(i)
and 2(j)(ii)).
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(k)

)

B 285 e A Fi

Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Perpetual convertible securities

Perpetual convertible securities are classified as equity
if it is non-redeemable, or redeemable only at the
Company’s option, and any interests and distributions are
discretionary. Interests and distributions on perpetual
convertible securities classified as equity are recognised

as distributions within equity.

Financial liabilities
[nitial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,

loans and borrowings, as appropriate.

Fair value of the financial liabilities on initial recognition
is normally the transaction price, after netting of the
directly attributable transaction costs. For the long-term
loan that carries no interest and low-interest long-term
loans, fair value is estimated as the present value of all
future cash outflows discounted using the prevailing
market rate(s) of interest for instruments that are similar
as to currency, term, type of interest rate, credit risk
and other factors. Any difference between the amount
received and the fair value of the instrument on initial

recognition is recognised as a gain in profit or loss.

For the loans borrowed from a shareholder acting in the
capacity of a shareholder, the difference between the
amount received and the fair value of the instrument on
initial recognition is recorded as an equity transaction in
the statement of changes in equity, as the substance of
the difference is a distribution to/contribution from the

shareholder.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other

payables, borrowings and certain accruals.
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Significant accounting policies
C
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Sul)qunvnt measurement

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance

costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or

loss.
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Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Inventories
(i) Retail of jewellery products

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined on the
weighted average basis and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and

disposal.

(ii) Property development

Inventories in respect of property development
activities are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of properties under
development for sale comprises specifically
identified cost, including the acquisition cost of
land, aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct expenses,
an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling
price less estimated costs of completion and
costs to be incurred in selling the property.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including time deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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Significant accounting policies
) C
(continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising

from the passage of time is charged to profit or loss.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability

of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries

in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and

their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Significant accounting policies
) C
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

= when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

and

- in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

- when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

and
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Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

= in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profits will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all

or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation

authority.
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Significant accounting policies
) C
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(i) sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective

control over the goods sold;

(ii) commission income, upon the sale of goods and

provision of services;

(iii)  service income, when the relevant services have

been rendered;

(iv) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right

to receive payment has been established; and

(v) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the

financial asset.
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Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Other employee benefits

(i)

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF

Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
which operate in Mainland China are required
to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a percentage of its payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension

scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the

payment of termination benefits.
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Significant accounting policies
) C
(continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with

the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or

loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using

the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollars. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at

the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

2

EREREOR (4)

fi BAR
J A A A I A 9 ] S 8 o A AR 5 A1 B
B TR A B2 1 A 2 FEAb AR o

b

A B LA AT EE K BIERHBILCES - &K
45 [ & T 44> Wl T AT HOE B R Sh RE RN > T
{1 T B A S R A T 3 DA RE W B IR o ACAR
V0 Ji 4% Rl RO Bk Z AN R B E S DA B H 45 B
ATl e B W M R ONIR o DA 2 BLAT Y £ R
R, IR i B4 2 R B0 W BE R 4B - O
B 32 AR sl B8 W A0 7 P Y 2 T AR

R SR AR 3 51 SR 3 DA A/ T B AL D B WO 4%
HIRA 5 H H BRI -

AT AI F I 2 ] % oy BB B T s v o DA A B O
B IIAR > %5 A R B R SRR B Y
KRBT RER B A AT BH W » i H 2R 4%
A BE IR - 24 BE R ARG YT o

123



124

ORIENT VICTORY TRAVEL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUA

L REPORT 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 /A
ARE

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BRI B 7EW » B RIL#IGEIR)

(u)

B 285 A M i

Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Foreign currencies ( ‘continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit

or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted

average exchange rates for the year.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii)  is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s

parent.
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Significant accounting policies
C
(continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

The entity and the Group are members

of the same group.

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of

which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the

same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate

of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to

the Group.
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Significant accounting policies
C
(continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

(vi)

(viii)

(continued)

The entity is controlled or jointly

controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of

the entity)

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the

Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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Significant accounting policies
C
(continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business

and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be

aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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(a)
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Accounting judgement and estimates

Critical accounting judgement in applying

the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following critical

accounting judgement:

Franchise arrangements

The Group holds 49% equity interests in an associate,
namely China Comfort Tourism Group Company
Limited (formerly known as China Comfort Travel
Group Company Limited) (“China Comfort”), and this
investment is accounted for in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements under the equity method. To
promote China Comfort’s brand name (the “Business
Brand”) and to establish a network throughout the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), China
Comfort entered into certain business arrangements
(the “Business Arrangements”) with various parties, in
which China Comfort and the said parties established
various companies under the relevant laws in the PRC.
In order to finance their respective establishments,
China Comfort made contributions in the form as
paid-in capital into these companies, hence China
Comlfort, from a legal perspective, holds equity interests
ranging between 5% and 100% in these companies.
China Comfort only maintains the rights to protect the
Business Brand. Under such Business Arrangements,
China Comfort is entitled to fixed amounts of annual fee
from these companies but does not share the operating

results of these companies.
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Accounting judgement and estimates
(continued)

Critical accounting judgement in applying
the Group’s accounting policies (continued)

Franchise arrangements (continued)

Under the relevant laws of the PRC, the companies
under the Business Arrangements are not regarded as
franchisees. However, since the Business Arrangements
only give China Comfort certain rights to protect its
Business Brand but do not give China Comfort control
or significant influence over these companies’ relevant
activities, or variable returns on the operating results of
these companies, the directors of the Company consider
the Business Arrangements, from an accounting
perspective, do not result in these companies being
regarded as subsidiaries, associates or other equity
investments of China Comfort, and accordingly, these
companies are not consolidated into China Comfort’s
consolidated financial statements. However, in a view to
reflect the substance of the Business Arrangements, the
directors of the Company consider it is appropriate to
regard these companies as franchisees of China Comfort,
where the fixed annual fees received/receivable are
recognised as franchise fee income instead of capital
distributions/dividends.

At the inception of the Business Arrangements, deposits
(i.e. financing in the form of paid-in capital mentioned
above) in these franchisees are initially accounted for as
a financial instrument at fair value, and thereafter stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Annual fees received/receivable from the franchisees are
recorded as franchise fee income, reflecting the purpose

for which the fees are charged.
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I R P S i 2 ]~ T N W O R R >
Bb > %5 O WS R O A\ e R R B A A
WA o SRV > B T RWERE LI TE > AN H
R Tt W S R AN e R Y o A T T R
B o T TR AT o 4 T s I L e W A T
BAMIR TR

TR SRS LI > W5 0 LR 4 (DA bt
BOR AT IR B &) FehI %A AR SRk T
FOAMR > FCARSRFH BT WA B2k 15 85 A B IR - o
i S ) B A i AR B A S g A
B T WO % 45 A E R
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(b)

B 285 e A Fi

Accounting judgement and estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities, are described below.

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for all non-financial
assets at the end of each reporting period,
except where indefinite life intangible assets are
tested for impairment annually (see Note 2(j)).
Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
annually or when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable, where
applicable, an impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset or cash-generating unit. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Changes in
these estimates could have a significant impact
on the recoverable amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit, and could result in additional
impairment charge or reversal of impairment in

future years.

(b)

Fut B A E ()

il w8 B o A e 1k

TS IR > SRR ARAT B 1 A S M1t e B LA B A
e e R 3K 2 T R M > 4 S5 LA AT R
BOG 7 N £ AR R I Y B K R TR

(i)  FEEmLEEZ WAL

2R T A i o ST R A 0 4
T AEAT T PR B 5 > L S 3 ) R
IR ST B e AR AR AT A B (SRR RE2())
S BR A o < e B 4 Y B L R v
fE VT REAS BE WA BT Py B SR IR AT iAot > (i
W) > B — TR A B A B R R
TG LR T WA T O ) B o T Wi ]
SR LT B 5 A L5 D R
WO o AP G B A T A R A 2
AELRA S A 2 HLEL R R T 122 5 P A ) S
kAT B T A AR % B
P LA T 389 0 B BRAR B o L6 AR
IRF > A B 6 ZEUA 2R A R B
P BT A FEL BT R S B 4 90 I 998 45 5 T P9 9T
BRDGHAZEB SR BN BE o %55t
528 Y VT G 7 3B B 4 A B T i JE]
SHELERBE > Wl EHORRKEE N
BRAGM AR 32 Hh Sl fE 8¢ 1]
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Accounting judgement and estimates 3 5k HIB AL ST ()
(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued) (b) hEHEERRIAHEEY (&)
(ii) Impairment of trade receivables (ii) JFE W B 57 Bk AR AL
The Group maintains an allowance for estimated A [ h % 5 S RE ) 32 A B SRR TR T B B
loss arising from the inability of its customers to Al 51 R 184 A o AS 4 ] U A 0 L R e
make the required payments. The Group makes DR EEERZ IR ~ &P 2 15 Bnl 58 B Xl
its estimates based on the ageing of its trade FEZ MBS R B AE AN BT - MHE P Z BBk
receivable balances, customers’ creditworthiness, 0, i S T 2 B M R PR S T I A - AR
and historical write-off experience. If the 1 76 SE U AR o TR RSB %
financial condition of its customers was to 2
deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss
might be higher than expected, the Group
would be required to revise the basis of making
the allowance and its future results would be
affected.
Revenue and segment reporting 4 WA Ry bR
Revenue (a) WA
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, W AR O &S N S A B PRIR & B
after allowances for returns and trade discount, the value KB GPrHn ~ PSR IR B A B AR BE A A A o
of services rendered and commission income during the
year.
The amount of each significant category of revenue is as A EARBABREHW T «
follows:
2017 2016
e S Y B RN
$°000 $°000
T+
Sale of air tickets B 226,007 61,301
Commission and service income from travel Tit EAH B S HA ZE B
related and other services Z M4 B R WA 10,282 17,032
Trading and retail of jewellery BREY G MRE 23,926 26,350
Commission income from sale of jewellery BRE S EZ WA 2,614 3,915
Financial services 4 b IR 1,741 819
264,570 109,417
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(a)

B 285 A M i

Revenue and segment reporting
C
(continued)

Revenue (continued)

The Group mainly engages in retail business, and the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
customer base is diversified and has no customer with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016. Details of concentrations of credit risk are set out
in Note 32(a).

Segment reporting

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and

has five reportable operating segments as follows:

- The travel related and other services segment,
which comprises the sale of air tickets and other
travel related services principally to corporate

clients;

- The trading and retail of jewellery segment,
which involves the distribution and sale of

jewellery products;

— The financial services segment, which mainly
involves the provision of advisory on corporate
finance, advisory on securities and asset

management services;

= The property development and investment
segment, which involves the development of
visitor accommodation for operating purpose

and properties for sale; and

= The investment holding segment, which mainly

involves equity investment activities.

(b)

WA e sr il ¥ty (4

WA ()

AR E B EREEE » WK AR #H R RS AR
M > % 5 L 2 22 B AL Bl i B 2 AT 2 A0 5 AR
AEERE-ZF-LEXF-ANETA=Z+—
HIEEEZBA10% 2% o H RSP E R ZF
T B B E32(a) ©

53w He
16 P i > A S I DA R 5 AL A
B BT AT T T 445 A A B

- T B S JE At S 23 ¥ > B9 B A S
%P S B L A A A R s 5

- BRI 5 BB > BRI A B 2 40 B
PG 28 5

£ SRS B > R Rt A R E R AR
TR R 3 i o ) A B IR O T 2
s

- Jo b P B R B 40 > o S B B RE R IR
B s KB EmE s K

- BE AR > B RBRERE TS -
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Revenue and segment reporting
C
(continued)

Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment

on the following bases:

Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a
measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The
adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) before
tax except that finance costs are excluded from

such measurement.

Segment assets and liabilities include all assets
and liabilities with the exception of cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank deposits which

are managed centrally.

4 WA RS R (4)

(b) bR (A7)

(i)

srab SRR - B M AR

R Al 23 F8 5 B e 3 TG 4% 4 4 T B DT
T o ACHR I R AT B B % T A e B
AR S AN ST~ A R

43 ¥ 32 B9 AR 98 T 4R 4y W R A Ofs )
R B BL i RS B F Ol dR) 2 5tH&) 7
PAREAS « BRBLHTAS I Bnm ] (R 75 E
DA Z BB AT A (R 4R) Wi o
BE A BRER AR o

sHEEAARBERAEEEKAMR > R
R B B N B B IH H % 3% PR SR AT
Tk BRAh o
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4  Revenue and segment reporting 4 WA RS EBERE ()
(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) ik ()
@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) EbEAE - BE KA ()
(continued)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable A 5 ] B A AT A L R R 4 T B R
segments as provided to the Groups most senior BREZFT-LFERZFE-AFTZHA=ZT
executive management for the purposes of — H IR EE 2 B R Bl SR Ak 2 A7 R A4
resource allocation and assessment of segment W] S 43 ORISR R -
performance for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016 is set out below.
Travel related and Trading and Property development
other services retail of jewellery Financial services and investment Investment holding Total
IEMBRHES  AREAREE SR PR A g Bt it
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
CEUE 2R CF LR ZRNE T UE ZR8R FLE ZRE T U 2R R 3L ZR 0k
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i i i i i i i i i i i i
Segment revenue A
Revenue from MR
external customers 236,289 IERSS 30,265 819 - 264,570 UL
Segment results S CATY]  (3817) (1,127) (608) - (173,611) SGHRIE)  (179,163)
Reconciliation: H :
Finance income/(costs) fithds /(B 1924 IV
Loss before tax Wbt RER]  (194,065)
Seqment asel g 2167 185% 913 N o500 R st GRS
Reconciliation: H :
Corporate and other RERIHFAE
unallocated assets ik RN 368,020
Total assets HEAE 926,022 (AR
Segment and total iabilities A RAEfE 35,128 11,882 3437 - Y 67,698 RS
Other segment information: bR :
Share of ossofanassociate ~~~ EAKTRVEF A - - - - (148,374 SRUBEIb]  (148374)
Losson disposalof property, ety ey
plant and equipment, net ik | B 54 . : ) ) 54
Depreciation fil (57) (47) 3 = (163) (35)] (270)
Capital expenditure whk (1) (33) - a (1.206) = 0REE  (1,300)
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Revenue and segment reporting
(continued)

Segment reporting (continued)

4 WA RS R (4)

(b) JrEBER (A7)

(ii) Geographical information (i) Hiu 35 & R
The following table sets out information about TR F A B AL H AR TN B AS 4 E
the geographical location of the Group’s revenue B Z WIS AR o 5 I ML A TG
from external customers and the Group’s assets. JE i 5 7 i T P B IR 5 2 b B i 4y o FRE
The geographical location of customers is ¥ M3 o i MR P A A i
based on the location at which the goods and JT AE M B (i 2% M 36 ~ W Bewie il ~ WL B
services were sold or provided. The geographical A W ST X DA B ) B P A
location of the specified assets is based on the Hi G (fid 2 R S Bl 2 AR (28 A W IR IR
physical location of the assets or the location WEER K 2 1 2 = b S L0 o0 i 2 A B A A 2
of the operations, in the case of property, plant JETE A BRAM) ) [ 4y o
and equipment, intangible assets arising from
licenses and current assets, and the location of
operations, in the case of interests in an associate
except for the associate’s intangible assets in
distribution network which is separately allocated
based on the location receiving the substantial
benefits.
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets Current assets Total assets
W Rl Fingg il BEAH
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
SR ZERNE DR LE 2B DT UE ZRNE 3 UE R E
$000 $000 $000 $1000 $000 $000 $000 $1000
B FE fi PR P PR Fi
Hong Kong (place of doicile) Bt MR ) 238,030 NG 350429 FUIREEE 396969 ARG 747398
Mainland China Rk 2650 [ RO 25365 MEEAGE 61300 [RGRC)
New Zealand Gl | - - 0720 - e -
109417 WAV 394043 [EEGIRRZY] 926,022 823178
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5  Other income 5 HalA
2017 2016
—F L4 RN
$°000 $°000
Tt Tt
6  Loss before tax 6  BRBiniEE
Loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): KRRl IR e (GEA) ¢
2017 2016
b BN
$°000 $°000
T
(a) Finance (income)/costs (a) W (k) #H
Interest on bank and other borrowings SRAT B AR A S
(Note 20(b)) (Fif7E20(b)) 848
Net finance charges in connection with B 5 SR =T
interest-free loans from a related B ERZ
party and a third party V85 32 Hi - 12,061
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss AV, it (2,548) 1,993
(1,924) 14,902
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) B ITEA (BEEFME
emoluments (Note 8)) (BH&ES))
Wages, salaries and other benefits T& ~ 4 KHAbER 30,285 29,390
Pension scheme contributions JEY N e 5 1,226 1,250
31,511 30,640
(c) Other items (c) HAbIEH
Cost of inventories sold (Note 16(b)) CEFEE A (Mik16(b)) 239,735 82,150
Depreciation (Note 12) Preg (Fifik12) 635 270
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ FEW B 5 Rak
Impairment losses on trade (I e HE ) /
receivables (Note 17(b)) WAEE (MEE17(0)) 828
Minimum lease payments under KRB AL B IR ARA B A
operating leases 6,754
Auditors’ remuneration A% P 4 2,213
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BB Kkt
plant and equipment, net it 54
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7 Income tax in the consolidated 7 G®IAZHEBEEEZNEH
statement of profit or loss
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) wIA#ZZEAHEAERZBIIELE :
PI’Ofit or IOSS l‘epl‘esents:
2017 2016
e Sl o ZERNF
$°000 $°000
Tt Tt
Current tax — Overseas BB IE — Wb
Provision for the year ARAE BB -
(b) Reconciliation between income tax and (b) PPl i B R G E 2 G R B IR
accounting loss at applicable tax rates:
2017 2016
E S 57 RN
$°000 $°000
T
Loss before tax R B i 12 (55,995) (194,065)
Notional tax on loss before tax, BB Al G 18 = 4 2 Ri0H
calculated at the rates applicable to profits (345 B = S5 HE i Z #i Al Z.
in the jurisdictions concerned W BRGHE) (47,593)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT B 5 2 B s 2 5,764
Tax effect of share of loss of an associate WEAR B A ) AR Z B 37,093
Tax effect of non-taxable income L T N S (771)
Tax effect of unused tax losses and temporary A MERRA Bl Z BIE 5 1H K&
differences not recognised W R 55 B 2 RS R 28 5,507

Actual tax expense B PRBLIE B 7
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(b)

Income tax in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss (continued)

Reconciliation between income tax and

accounting loss at applicable tax rates:

(continued)

Notes:
(i)

(ii)

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2017 is
calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year. The Company and the
subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in Hong Kong
did not have assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
Profit Tax for 2017 (2016: $Nil).

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the
Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands and the BVL.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the PRC, the
Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China are
subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax at the statutory
rate of 25% during the year (2016: 25%), except
for a subsidiary of the Group which is a small-scale
enterprise and is subject to income tax rate at 20%
(2016: 20%).

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the New
Zealand, the Group’s subsidiaries established in the
New Zealand are subject to the Business Income Tax
at the statutory rate of 28% during the year (2016: not
applicable).

Rt ASR B R Z NGB (4)

Pt 45 B B 9% 9 FH B Rt B 2 & s 1R B
B (47)

Wk

(i)

R — LA ) A5 B A i A A I A S E B
WA 1916.5% (ZF—N4F 1 16.5%) w5 o ARA T
TR A S A A v A o 2 B A W) i — R — B4R
JRE S 0 75 S A A o A5 B MR B ) (=N
4 ) o

LR B 5 Doy T G A R ([ R A
E5 1) MRS R o ARG B 2R A T B 2
T B A R 5 AR

R e A ) B R > A A e R K e o o 2
JE AT IR AR BEHR25% (B — N4 ¢ 25%) Z ¥
SE B AR BN B A S PTAS R > MEAR SR I 2 i /N
A F 2 B 2 W BRAD > %% A T $5%20% 2 Bl R AR
Fifae (ZF—7N4 1 20%) ©

AL 05E ATE 1 0 F B A > AR SR T % Atk 4 A i o
i 4 B U AR A BE AR08 % 2 W R BL AR B A A SR T 45
Bt (ZFR—7NEE : D) -
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Directors’ emoluments 8 HEWE
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section FEE O TG 48 383 (1) B2 A T (P 5 3 2 P 25
383(1) of the Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BE) BGIAEER Y Z W T kR T ¢

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salaries,
allowances Pension
Directors’ and benefits scheme 2017
fees in kind contributions Total
Widr o~ wEy BkEentE T L4
WS REDAE Btk Az
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T+t T+t T+t T
Chairman £
Mr. Shi Baodong AR
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Zhao Huining e
(appointed on 16 June 2017) (R =F— L4
AHTNBERE)
Mr. Wang Jianhua FEEEEA
Ms. Xu Yongmei kALt
(retired with effect from 16 June 2017) (R ZZF—-b4E
ANHITANHBE)
Non-executive director FPATES
Ms. Song Sining R
(appointed on 16 June 2017) (A=t
AHTNBERE)
Mr. Li Yankuan BETEAE
(retired with effect from 16 June 2017)  (RZZF—-t4E
AHTNHIBE)

Independent non-executive directors  BILIERATHE F

Mr. Dong Xiaojie US4
Mr. He Qi s satk

Mr. Law Wang Chak, Waltery /ey
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8  Directors’ emoluments (continued) s HFME ()
Salaries,
allowances Pension
Directors’  and benefits scheme 2016
fees in kind contributions Total
Fiar > wEE BAREFHE RN
WS KEWAR Bk A
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Tt Tt Tt Tt
Chairman EN
Mr. Shi Baodong AR E - 1,920 18 1,938
Executive directors HiT#ESE
Mr. Wang Jianhua B - - - -
Ms. Xu Yongmei Pt et = = = =
Non-executive director FEPUTHE S
Mr. Li Yankuan ZEERE L _ _ _
Independent non-executive directors B L IEPATESF
Mr. Dong Xiaojie HNR e 100 = = 100
Mr. He Qi farE e 100 = = 100
Mr. Law Wang Chak, Waltery RS 100 - - 100
300 1,920 18 2,238

For the year ended 31 December 2017, Mr. Shi
Baodong, Mr. Wang Jianhua, Ms. Xu Yongmei and Mr.
Li Yankuan agreed to waive director’s remuneration of
$20,000, $620,000, $283,671 and $9,151, respectively
(2016: Mr. Shi Baodong, Mr. Wang Jianhua, Ms. Xu
Yongmei and Mr. Li Yankuan agreed to waive director’s
remuneration of $20,000, $620,000, $620,000 and
$20,000, respectively).

MREZZ—LET A=+ —HIREE > AR
S~ EREBEEAE S FFRIBLEREFEET A S
B[] 3% ik 2 ¥ 3 B 4:20,0009 JC ~ 620,000% G -
283,671% 76 K 9,151 76 (ZF — N4« A RS
A~ ERHGA - FFok ML KRBT A B
T I #E 2 420,000 I8 ~ 620,000% 78 ~ 620,000
W0 5% 20,00045C) °
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Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2016: one) are directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in Note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in
respect of the other three (2016: four) individuals are as

follows:

e A\t
RERBTMEA L - f% (DA% —4)

REF QLS BB HEES) - =4 (ZF—R
A U4) NI EREIT

2017 2016
I ZERNE

$:000 $000
T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Discretionary bonuses

Pension scheme contributions

i~ WA RIS
AR ARG B ALK

5,367
247
54

5,668

The emoluments of the three (2016: four) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following
bands:

=4 (CF A
LU

YA ) o e I e N\ e 2 T 4

$Nil — $1,000,000

$1,000,001 — $1,500,000
$2,500,001 — $3,000,000
$3,000,001 — $3,500,000

Z¥I0 — 1,000,000% 0

1,000,001#78 — 1,500,000# 70
2,500,001% 78 — 3,000,000%5 70
3,000,001%7%6 — 3,500,000% 70

2017 2016

I Sl s TR N
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AN N

2

1

1

Dividend

The board of directors of the Company does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: $Nil).

10 BB

AT EFEAERRNKE-F - LFETZAZ
T HILAE R ZARMTARIBIBE, (ZF A4 4 -
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11

(b)

Loss per share 11 #BEE
Basic loss per share (a) BBIEAREE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the 9 IR 35 A Jls 4 7 T s A A ) 35 8 e E 2 JBE SR A s
loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the 1B R AR N TBAT I 8 B RE P2 BT 5 A B RS
Company and the weighted average ordinary shares in W
issue during the year, calculated as follows:
(i) Loss for the purpose of calculating basic loss (i) RSN & YN AT i
per share
2017 2016
e Sl TRNAE
$°000 $°000
Tt T
Loss attribute to the equity owners of AN FIREZS B N\ EAL s 1E
the Company 191,816
Distribution paid to the holders of CIRM KA T IS 5508 A
perpetual convertible securities Z AUk
(Note 26) (Fi=i26) =
Accrued distribution to the holders of KA R RS A A ESH IR
perpetual convertible securities (FftiE26)
(Note 26) =
Loss for the purpose of calculating IR A 1R T = 2 5 1R
basic loss per share 191,816
(ii) Weighted average number of ordinary (ii) 5 2 JBE R - 35 8
shares
2017 2016
—ZE b RN
’000 ’000
T T
(Restated)
(FEEE )
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January —H—HZ B8 75 m 12,047,043 10,979,337
Effect of warrants exercised (Note 25(b)(i)) TAT i 58 b 2 2
(FRRE25(b) (1)) 489,860 632,244
Effect of issuance of shares under open offer  AR#52 b 8% 8 847y Z 5%
(Note 25(b)(ii)) (BRF5E25(b)(ii)) 55,760
Effect of issuance of shares upon conversion AR A W] 0B F2 RE 84T
of perpetual convertible securities Bz R
(Note 25(b)(iii)) (FtE25(b) Gii) ) 141 -
Weighted average number of ordinary TZHE+—H Z @
shares at 31 December S8 12,537,044 11,667,341
Diluted loss per share (b) IR

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding for the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016. The effect of the deemed conversion of the
perpetual convertible securities and exercise of the
warrants were not included in the calculation of diluted
loss per share as they are anti-dilutive during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

REEZF-LER-F-AF+T_A=+—HI1
A JRE S B0 e R B AT VR A T R A o AR I K
A J5 B i 25 AT 0 J A i 4 B S R i A B
s RN > RARBE—F L4+ A
%1‘*5&@&%%%%&%&@%%%&&&%%&
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12 Property, plant and equipment 12 3 - s ekt
Furniture and Machinery
leasehold and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
E31193 1 729
N % Bdi HUiE okl
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Tt Tt Tt Tt
Cost: B
At 1 January 2017 R-F—tHE—H—H
Additions RE
Additions through acquisition #8408 Wi PG 2 v VS
of a subsidiary (Note 27) (BfFsk27)
Disposals H&
Exchange adjustments i 5, 8 8
At 31 December 2017 WEE—tiE S HEE—H

Accumulated depreciation: R :

At 1 January 2017 R_F—tFE—H—H

Charge for the year AR BE S

Written back on disposals H 438 [l

Exchange adjustments JFEE b A 2

Mt Dreemlin 80T =GR N,
Carrying amount: JRTHIAA ¢

At 31 December 2017 WoZ—tiE+—H=+—H
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12

Property, plant and equipment

12 Y36 ~ W Kt (A7)

(continued)
Furniture and Machinery
leasehold and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
ey B X
il B4 HUI Hag
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T T T T
Cost: % NE
At 1 January 2016 RE=F—AHFE—H—H 845 965 311 2,121
Additions RE 98 103 1,099 1,300
Additions through acquisition 4 488 i Pt /& 23 w1V B
of subsidiaries 9 5 = 7
Disposals & (442) (149) — (591)
Exchange adjustments [FEE B, i 2 (27) (37) (18) (82)
At3] December 2016 R-F—AE+_H=+—H ) t Lged A5
Accumulated depreciation: et
At 1 January 2016 RER—ANE-A—H (595) (702) (279) (1,576)
Charge for the year AR BES H (40) (93) (137) (270)
Written back on disposals H 43 ] 397 140 - 537
Exchange adjustments P S0 B 292 29 16 67
a8l DecembenalloNIN REF-AFTZA=TH @e (626) .. A )
Carrying amount: MR :
At 31 December 2016 N_F—NET+_HA=1+—H 260 261 992 1,513
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22 /A
AR

S5 i A B

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BRI H7EW » & RIL#IGEIR)

13 B ARZRE
DL 9125 0 4 o T A 4 S A~ A

The following list only contains the particulars of the

subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets

or liabilities of the Group.

F i 25 A

Proportion of ownership interest

WAL A2 L
Place of Particulars of issued/ The Group’s Held by
incorporation/ registered and effective the Held by
Name of company establishment paid up capital interest ~ Company  a subsidiary Principal activity
FEL oEfr/ REMH AaE WEAH
Nk JRALH BalyE it {5 Fifii Firfii TEERES
1 Miller Rise Development Ltd. New Zealand NZD100 100% - 100% Property development
1 Miller Rise Development Ltd. Av 100475 76 R
173 Millwater Parkway Investment Ltd. New Zealand NZD100 100% - 100% Property development
173 Millwater Parkway Investment Ltd. BT | 1004 PTG e B
China Tourism & Culture Industrial The Cayman Islands -~ USD2,500,000 40% = 40% Investment holding
Investment Fund Management Limited PSS 9,500,000557¢ Eiaceid e
(“Tourism Fund”) (Note (i)
A UL AR S A A A
(TR | ) (k)
Four Seas Tours Limited Hong Kong 3,000,000 shares 65% - 65% Sale of air tickets and
(“Four Seas Tours”) e 3,000,000 et other travel related services
DR ATAL AT A ) (T3 D) W R AR
R
Nanjing South China Baoging Jewellery Mainland China RMB5,500,000 55.63% = 65.45% Trading and retail
Co., Litd. (R % P 5 AR 1 o A RS 500,00078 of jewellery
HRAH, “Nanjing Baoging”) (Note (i) KAYAREZE

MR SRR M A
(TR PR ) (Wi (i)
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13 Investments in subsidiaries 13 RAHBARZRE ()
(continued)
Proportion of ownership interest
YA HERE 5 2 T
Place of Particulars of issued/ The Group’s Held by
incorporation/ registered and effective the Held by
Name of company establishment paid up capital interest ~ Company  a subsidiary Principal activity
FEARE o#t/ KEH AR WEAR
NGRS FRALH 2 AL R AR 103 0 Firfefi Firfeh FIEH )
Orient Victory Azure Asset Management  Hong Kong 5,650,000 shares 100% = 100% Provision of advising
Limited (formerly known as Afanti Asset i 5,650,000 B4 on securities and assets
Management Limited) management services
R EAEHARAR eS8 (i i
(ARG AEEARAR) JRBHAE TR
Orient Victory Azure Capital Limited Hong Kong 1,200,000 shares 100% = 100% Provision of advising on
(“Azure Capital”") (Note (iii) P 1,200,000/t corporate finance services
B R B AR AR AR A R R
(TR B 1) (Wb E i)
Shenzhen Dongsheng Huamei Cultural ~ Mainland China < 100% = 100% Investment holding
Travel Company Limited (RYIRE; AR Note (iv) RELER
IR RAT) (Note (i) Wik (v

FRIRBHER LR A A R

(ki)

Notes: Pk

(i) The Group has the power to control the entity through (i) AEHER LR FGRDBREZ N FAH
its power to appoint the majority of the board of 2 PEHIRE -
directors.

(ii) The English translation of the names are for reference (ii) LRI CHEE 2% - RS EMEZE AR
only. The official names of these entities are in FCEHE o
Chinese.

(iii) The entity was acquired in 2017. Further details on the (iii) % B 2 — L AR W o A B OIS A S B
acquisition are set out in Note 27. 727 o

(iv) The registered capital of this entity is RMB450,000,000. (v) B G AR N R 450,000,0007C © =%

As of 31 December 2017, the registered capital has not
been paid up.

—HBEFZAZTH o REEAMARAE -
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Investments in subsidiaries 13 RHEARZRE (#F)
(continued)
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material B TR I e Je R i 1 A A 1 S A A RS
non-controlling interests are set out below: Ik
2017 2016
——n
Percentage of equity interest held by FEae BERE s A PR 0 b
non-controlling interests:
— Four Seas Tours — Ui 35% 35%
— Nanjing Baoqing — MR E R 44.37% 44 .37%
~ Tourism Fund — iR 60% N/A A
2017 2016
e S i e Sy
$°000 $000
Tt
Loss for the year allocated to S B T e R R 2 A A4 BE s 1R
non-controlling interests:
— Four Seas Tours — DYy (1,336)
— Nanjing Baoging and its immediate — MR R R H R A
holding company (collectively (%% [P n B AR 1 )
“Nanjing Baoqing Group”) (913)
— Tourism Fund — LA =
2017 2016
e S i O TR N
$°000 $000
Tt
Accumulated balances of non-controlling TP B0 P PR Bl 2 ) SR A i
interests at the reporting period:
— Four Seas Tours — DU 389
— Nanjing Baoqing Group — T BT A 3,427

— Tourism Fund

— iR 4
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13

Investments in subsidiaries

(continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial

13 REEARZHRE (4)

TR _E A B A T 2 B R SE > B R

information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts HH R o Vi) TR A2 B 4REH T
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:
Nanjing Baoqing Group Four Seas Tours Tourism Fund
oy ¢ Ed 3 i 5 4
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
“FLE 22N R ZFN B Sl v e S
$000 $000 $000 $000 $°000 $000
Fii T T

Revenue B

Total expenses % R4

Loss for the year AR R

Current assets T

Non-current assets JEm B

Current liabilities W

Net assets B

Net cash flows generated wEmE L
from/(used in) (BT 2
operating activities BAEm R

Net cash flows generated BEEHEL
from/(used in) (BT 2
investing activities BAe TR

Net cash flows generated MBS EL
from/(used in) (BT 2
financing activities BAe T

Net increase/(decrease) in BeRB&FHEEE
cash and cash equivalents Bein /(W)

i i
26,540 30,265
(29,668)
(3,129) (2,057)
17,550 20,069
280 230
(12,654) ERAPELC)

a6

T
236,289 78,333
2142

38,531 36,641
906 199
(40,467) (35,728)

(L,030) 1,112

(577) 5419
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Interest in an associate

The following table lists out the particulars of China

Comlfort, which is an unlisted entity.

14 RS A w2 BE i
TR P R 2 S > A 3k e o

Proportion of ownership interest

B RERES F AL
Particulars of The Group’s Held by
Place of registered and effective the Held by

Name of associate establishment paid up capital interest Company  asubsidiary  Principal activity

akfit & REH AAR WEAH
- yNEA JRAL BRI B Fifsi fififi  FEEEED
China Comfort Mainland China RMB70,000,000 49% - 49%  Provision of tourism-related and
o K N EEH70,000,00078 ticket-sales-related services,

and provision of brand name

for use by the franchisees

SR Do 2 5 A R
SR A% 8 A 3 0

On 22 September 2015 (the “Acquisition Date”),
the Group acquired 49% equity interests in China
Comfort at a total consideration of RMB441,000,000
(approximately $541,573,000). China Comfort
is accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements since the Acquisition

Date.

REZF—AAENLA T ZH (TWEEH ) » AREH
DL AR AR B A R H5441,000,00078 (£1541,573,000% Jt5)
WAL B v (B R A9 SR ASRE B o 1 WA I T > v o
METGHR FIRERS D A7 A B B R R AR -
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14

Interest in an associate (continued)

Summarised financial information of an

associate

Summarised financial information of China Comfort,

adjusted for fair value adjustments made at the

14 RBiE AR ZHER (A7)
W 2 vl 2 S 5 R R

F B RO Y S 5 R (BRI O H T T 2 A
S A B Bt BOSR  ATA] 2 AR R R B A

Acquisition Date and any differences in accounting BiFEREmAEEE) 3BT
policies, and reconciled to the carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements is disclosed below:
2017 2016
- Sl i ZFE N
$°000 $°000
T
Gross amounts of China Comfort’s v [ B Al 4 A
Non-current assets JEREE 1,138,155 1,044,747
Current assets T A E 237,413 155,213
Current liabilities MERAR (310,252) (186,628)
Non-current liabilities FEifi ) f1 £ (247,718) (230,641)
Non-controlling interests Bl diig T (2,761) =
Equity attributable to the Group A58 L B A1 T A R i 814,837 782,691
Group’s effective interest I 5] ) B B S 49% 49%
Group’s share of net assets of China A AR E R
Comfort and carrying amount in the AR AR [0 A v [ 2
consolidated financial statements B e MR T AR 399,271 383,519
2017 2016
I S ¥ ZFE N
$°000 $°000
Tt
Revenue for the year AR N 758,245 579,298
Net loss for the year (Note (i)) AAE IR A (MHEEG)) (27,587) (302,804)
Groups effective interest A5 5] ) B B S 49% 49%
Group’s share of net loss of China Comfort BSOS e Z AR I A
in the consolidated financial statements o o] R ) o 1R VR T (13,517) (148,374)
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Interest in an associate (continued)

Summarised financial information of an
associate (continued)

Note:

(i) On the Acquisition Date, the identifiable net assets
acquired by the Group included intangible assets
(representing China Comfort’s trademark and
distribution network). These intangible assets are with
indefinite useful lives and are allocated to the business
of China Comfort as a whole, which is identified as
a single cash-generating unit (i.e. China Comfort
CGU). The carrying amount of these intangibles
at 31 December 2017 amounted to $831,832,000.
The management of the Group has carried out an
impairment assessment on China Comfort CGU at 31
December 2017. The recoverable amount of China
Comfort CGU is determined based on value-in-use
calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections
covering a five-year period based on financial budgets
prepared by the management of China Comfort and
strategic projections representing the best estimated
future performance of China Comfort, including the
forecast revenue, cost of sales and other operating
expenses. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using an estimate weighted average
growth rate of 4% which is consistent with market
concensus on long-term growth rate of travel industry
in the PRC. The cash flows are discounted using a
discount rate of 18.31%. The discount rate used is
pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to China
Comfort CGU. Based on the results of the value-in-use
calculation, the management of the Group considers
that no impairment loss is required to be made on
China Comfort CGU, and hence, the intangible assets.

14 REEBEANZ L ()
AT Z MR (4)

W

(i)

2

H

T ¢

AL H T > A AR B WA i v ) L A
TE B e (B v 2 it v A B 4 B A ) o S S
T KA SRR A AR > SR 43 10 T v [
SEE o TR Ry W — B4 e A AT (BT e [ R B
SEAYANL) ZFEMEEEZRTER —F—L
A+ H =+— H #831,832,000% 0 o A4 [ 45 HlL
Bt —F—tE = R PR B4
JE A B A TIRAE A o o IR ORE 2 B 43 s AR B A
VT e R e P AV S B o WX S i
Y AR B R T - % TR e ) R A
L i A 1 A S e L A, e v [ A
RFEBZ AL FT > BB - 858 AR K&
88 B 3 o AR FLAR T I B A R R R A A R
R R4 MEATHESE » WS4 A b B AT R
WIR R R T - B4R R R HITBRIS.31%
HEATHBL o Bt A B B R BRABE AT » 3 S e B
[ R M 5 453 2 A LA A R Y o SR o ARk
TEFT B A » ARER JE A5 B i o A » D ZE 36 o IR
M 2 B 4 s A WAL e ST I T PR A AR i A
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15

Intangible assets

15 e E

Securities
licenses
$°000
Tt
Cost: A :

At 1 January 2016 BRoR—ANE—H—H =
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries 25 708 VL I — ] o i A ) S 9,011
At 31 December 2016 R-F—ANE+_H=1+—H 9,011
At 1 January 2017 BoF—-t4gE—H—H 9,011

Addition through acquisition of a subsidiary Z U — P A S (Fihaka7)

(Note 27) 7,377
At 31 December 2017 N_F—tFE+-_H=+—H 16,388
Accumulated impairment losses: BEHRA A ¢
At 31 December 2016, 1 January 2017 and R-F—ANE+_H=1+—H -

31 December 2017 “F -t —-H—AR=ZF—LF T ZH=1—H =
Carrying amount: MR -

At 31 December 2017 N_F—t&E+—_H=+—H 16,388
At 31 December 2016 N_F—ANE+_H=1+—H 9,011

The intangible assets represent the licences to carry
out Type 4 (Advising on securities), Type 6 (Advising
on corporate finance) and Type 9 (Asset management)

activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance

(the “SFO”) (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). A ST 2 B o

Management assessed that the economic useful lives of

the licenses to be indefinite.

JE T B E 4 0L 3 A U 1k ) SRS TIE R R I I R Ak
il (3% 27 B 1 B el 1) JE R SR 48 Ot 23 R R
S ~ el O SEm B PR A) RAFOR (R
B G BRI o 4 BH AR > A R AL P AR A 5
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16 Inventories

(a)

16 &

Inventories in the consolidated (a) HmEMBERIABRNZEEELE :
statement of financial position
comprise:
2017 2016
“BLE CRAF
$°000 $°000
S " Tt
Raw materials JE KR 1,441
Work in progress TERL 5 61
Finished goods SRR 14,508
Land held for future development FAEARAR B 2 1 b -
16,010
At 31 December 2017, the Group’s inventories N-F—LtHE+H=+—H KEH
with an aggregate carrying amount of $8,396,000 R T {48 %18,396,000%% JC (T — N 4 ¢
(2016: $6,679,000) were pledged as security for 6,679,000%70) Z 78 CHH HAIESE =5 i
a third-party guarantee against the Group’s bank PR A S B 42 SR AT R Z W R o HE— 2
loans. Further details are set out in Note 23 of SRR A S5 A B S R M 23 o
the consolidated financial statements.
The amount of land held for future development TE A 7 8 48— 4F 1% [ 2 R AR AR 2k 88
expected to be recovered after more than one Hh 2 4 % 550,472,000 06 (T — A4 ¢
year is $50,472,000 (2016: $Nil). All of the other JE) o B IAtLAE B IR — 4R ke o
inventories are expected to be recovered within
one year.
The analysis of the amount of (b) MERABZTHBABRZHFESH
inventories recognised as an expense SR :
and included in profit or loss is as
follows:
2017 2016
e Sl i ZER—N
$°000 $°000
Tt T+
Carrying amount of inventories sold CEAR R E 238,755 82,150
Write down of inventories FEMEY 980 =
239,735 82,150
The analysis of carrying value of land (c) FHEFEHMEMHBZ L IREMHEZ
held for property development is as SHIE :
follows:
2017 2016
—R—+L TERNE
$°000 $°000
Tt Tu
In New Zealand T 48 7 R
- 50 years or more (long leases) — 504E DL b (REIALE) -




154

ORIENT VICTORY TRAVEL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B B 2 AR M

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BRI B 7EW » B RIL#IGEIR)

17 Trade receivables 17 BEWCHE 5 R
2016
R A
$°000
T
Trade receivables FEW R 5 Mk 26,632
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (Note 17(b)) ¥ : SR (FiFEE17(h)) (828)
25,804
All of the trade receivables are expected to be received TR A W B 5 MR ol i — 4 P Wi [l o
within one year.
(a)  Ageing analysis (a) HRE
As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis BREAREHR > IS 2 ERENGRREERER
of trade receivables, based on the invoice date and net of ARIEEE L H B AR B A AT T
allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:
2017 2016
e S ¥ TR NG
$°000 $°000
T
Within 90 days y N LGN 24,585
91 to 180 days ut—HZ—FE)N\TH 1,173
181 to 365 days —ANt—HE="ATLH 46
25,804

Trade receivables are due within 14 to 90 days (2016: 14
to 90 days) from the date of billing. Further details on
the Group’s credit policy are set out in Note 32(a).

B H G s R BIRN14290H (ZF—A
4 14%90H ) NEIM o AL G EBURZE— P
T R B RE32(a)
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Trade receivables (continued) 17 BWE SRk (&)
Impairment of trade receivables (b)  FEWE 5 Wk AE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are JRE Wt B 5 W ek ) Rk AL s 4B T 5 P A MR R o Bk
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is I A A 1 A5 Ay WK Il % K T Y T R RE AR 5 R X
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which VL > JAE i 18 R W B S R Ak (R B 5
case the impairment loss is written off against trade 2(j)) °
receivables directly (see Note 2(j)).
The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts AN OR IR Z S T
during the year are as follows:
2017 2016
e Sl i ZE N
$°000 $°000
T+t
At 1 January R—H—H -
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment AR TR ), O ol (e 1R
loss recognised 828
At 31 December WT=H=1—H 828
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither S A A B mk S ] 45 2 YRR AL ) E WAL B B M A B S
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired AHE :
are as follows:
2017 2016
e Sl W ZE—N
$°000 $°000
T+
Neither past due nor impaired ARIGTH IR A IRAE 10,653
Less than 90 days past due A AN LT H 14,779
90 to 365 days past due Yt HE=ZAATIH 31

25,463

155



156

ORIENT VICTORY TRAVEL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 N\
sy

S5 e Mk

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BRI B 7EW » B RIL#IGEIR)

17
(b)

18

Trade receivables (continued) 17 JEWHE 5k ()
Impairment of trade receivables (continued) (b) MEWHE 5 R WAE ()
All of the trade receivables relate to a number of 2 HE W B ) MRk 5 B AR AR AR [ R AR AT SR
independent customers that have a good track record HTELF AR - MBRARER - 48R % U
with the Group. Based on past experience, management SRR IR 5 AT R FE B o DB PRI A R K oI S
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary T R 1T 465 % 415 A9 4 7T DA 2 Sl el o
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable.
Prepayments, deposits and other 18 THAFFKIA ~ $54 J H fth E W 5%
receivables
2017 2016
e Sl s 3 ZF AN
$°000 $°000
Tt
Prepayments for acquisition and WA i e B . B A ] 2
establishment of subsidiaries T 11,849
Prepayments for other operating expenses HoAth 288785 BH 52 2 T RIE 4,769
Interest receivable TEU R B, 1,340
Other deposits and receivables o AbA% 4 % FEWUR 5% 1,343
19,301

All of the prepayments, deposits and other receivables
are expected to be recoverable or recognised as expense

within one year.

As at 31 December 2017, $599,700 (2016: $501,000) of
the Group’s other receivables were pledged as security
for a third-party guarantee against the Group’s bank
loans. Further details are set out in Note 23 of the

consolidated financial statements.

JI A B AR I ~ 5 4 e S A B Sk S TR TR — 4R
PRy AL T st R B S o

NoZF—tE+ZA=Z+—H> KEBLSHE S
599,700% JG (ZF— /N 4F : 501,000%5 7G) A - il JiE
Wk P A 58 = 07 98 R N 3t A 42 [ SR AT B s i 32 1 %
PR o ME— 2B R IR R A SR B B B M 23 o
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19 Restricted bank deposits 19 ZFRiEIR T K
2017 2016
SE L BN
$°000 $°000
Tt T+
Guaranteed deposits for a letter of credit A BE B A B
(Note (i)) (BfHiE()) 33,393
Restricted deposit for future distributions to ) AR R B a8 R A
perpetual convertible securities holders ZRHIIRZ Z PRl FE K
(Note (ii)) (B Gii)) =
33,393

Notes: B

(i) The Group obtained a letter of credit from a bank (i) A4 [ O Uk A ERAT B 15 B I A AR N R
and placed a deposit of RMB27,718,000 (equivalent H27.718,0000 (FH I £133,248,0009 76) 1 % #k
to approximately $33,248,000) as security (2016: (ZF A4 ARH30,000,00058 > HH % 7R#
RMB30,000,000, equivalent to approximately 33,393,000878) © 17 FH # SR 2 v 0 B SR 47
$33,393,000). The letter of credit was pledged as TSGR o 5 RN =2 — )\FE+— H 20 -
security for China Comfort’s bank loan. The letter of
credit will expire in November 2018.

(ii) For the perpetual convertible securities issued on 30 (ii) R —ANESH =1 H BB TR A RS
March 2016 (Note 26), the Group undertook to the & (Fiak26) » AN H i FE A& > st e
holders that it would deposit an amount equivalent SRATHR P 17 I — S K AT JBe i 5 2 W AR R AR
to 6% of the outstanding principal amount of the SN TR » BB R -
perpetual convertible securities at a designated bank
account to serve as guaranteed deposit.

20 Cash and cash equivalents and other 20 & RBESFMHIEH U LR GRE

cash flow information B

(a@ Cash and cash equivalents in the (a) HEMBIRNFERNNI & KB & %FMHE
consolidated statement of financial position H&H :

comprise:

2017 2016

e

$°000 $°000

S " T

Cash at bank and on hand SRAT R PB4 35,632 39,539
Time deposits with original maturity of JEEIH H AR =M A Z sk

less than 3 months 322,064 295,088

357,696 334,627

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

ARWEART B f st s B 0 - EARER (B Sh I
BRI e A RE ~ B M A REAT BBLAE ) - R ACSR
VB 325 20 M 2 B 2 A7 1 M S B 2 BRSNS S 4y
HAtn g -
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20 Cash and cash equivalents and other 20 BERBESFMHEHURBRESRE
cash flow information (continued) Bl (4F)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) RUVEIGE EAZ AR IR

financing activities

Bank and
other Interest Distributions
borrowings payable payable Total
AT R Bk RERHAE R 230k it
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T
(Note 23) (Note 22)
(WHik23) (Wrik22)
At1 January 2017 REZ—LE-A—H
Changes from financing cash flows: MEB R :
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings BT R AR BT k0
Repayment of bank and other borrowings RAAT R AR
Interest paid CHAE
Distributions paid to holders of perpetual RAT YRR A48 NIk
convertible securities (20,992)
Toulchanges om rancigeshlows  MEASHRABAR i
£ - . e N
Other changes: 15 :
Distributions declared EHHMK
Interest on bank and other borrowings BT RILAAE KA B
(Note 6(a)) (Wit6(a))

At 31 December 2017 BZZ—tE+ZH=1—H
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Trade payables 21 JEATE B IR

As at the end of reporting period, the ageing analysis of BREARBHEIR » AN SRR EEE HB/ER
trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows: ZHRE TN R -

2017 2016
—E L TR N
$°000 $000
Tt
Within 90 days JutHA 28,638
91 to 180 days it—HZE—H"/N\TH 42
181 to 365 days —HANT—HE=Z=AATHLH 86
Over 365 days BIB=EHNT1H 73
28,839

Included in trade payables are payables of $29,414,000
(2016: $25,415,000) due to a non-controlling equity

shareholder of a subsidiary which are repayable within 40
days from the date of billing,

All of the trade payables are expected to be settled

within one year or are repayable on demand.

JRE At B Wk 9 R A5 — ] B A R0 S e e
25 I 2 B A K IE 29,414,000 T (B — N 4E ¢
25,415,000470) > 78 H 25 H AU+ H R -

TR BT A AT B2 5 MR A — 4 P T A S R
R -

Other payables and accruals 22 HAMREAT 3k M BE &
2017 2016
- S 20 RN
$°000 $°000
Tt T
Amounts due to related parties JREAST B Wi Ty sk T 1,693
Payables to air tickets customers JEAT B SR % P Rk IE 5,738
Accrued legal and professional fee i R eSS ] 7,923
Other accruals and payables A 22 FH % HE Ak 9,636
Distributions payable FEAF 23T 15,892
40,882

The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, non-
interest-bearing and are repayable on demand. All of the
other payables and accruals are expected to be settled or
recognised as income within one year or are repayable

on demand.

JREASF 6 S O i S KA~ B S B 2RI R A
B o THEH TR Al Ak M HE T R — 4 T B
AR A N\ SR BER AR
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22 /A
AT

23

Short-term borrowings

The analysis of the Group’s short-term borrowings is as

23 B

1 o,
HBA

A B AR AT

follows:
2017 2016
DL S S R A
Notes $°000 $°000
Btk Tt Tt
Bank loans SATER (@) 5,565
Other borrowings S ik (i) 4,052
9617

Notes:

(i)

The bank loans bear interest at a rate of 4.35% (2016:
rates ranged from 4.5% to 6.0%) per annum. The
Group’s bank loans with an aggregate carrying amount
of $4,798,000 (2016: $4,452,000) are guaranteed by
Nanjing Minxing Credit Guarantee Co., Ltd. (“Nanjing
Minxing”), a third party. Such guarantees are
further secured by the Group’s inventories and other
receivables with carrying amount of $8,396,000 and
$599,700 as at 31 December 2017, respectively (2016:
$6,679,000 and $501,000, respectively).

Other borrowings are unsecured, bear interest at 6.5%
per annum (2016: 6.5% per annum) and are repayable

on demand.

All of the short-term borrowings at 31 December 2017
and 2016 are denominated in RMB.

Wt

(if)

SRAT B K HK4.35% (B — N 4F + B R A P4.5%
F6.0%Z ) Z 4 F Rk R o A< 4 H 48 1R T 4
4,798,000¥ 70 (T — /N4E 1 4,452 0008 0) Z #F
T8R4 T K B 58 = 05 B R R I AR PR TR A
(TR R ) #EHR - R_F—LHETZH=T
—H o %I O e AR 4 18 R i F 43 71 % 8,396,000 %%
TL %599, 700870 (—F—7 4 = 431 456,679,000%
TR 501,0008 78 ) Z A7 5 B H A MoK T AR 1 — 25
Wk

A R SR - 326.5% (R N4F ¢ £ R
6.5%) ZAEFIFGH B SR ZOR AR -

REF—LERZFE-ANF+ZA=+—H i
R N R HE -
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Income tax in the consolidated 24 #3555 MEIRDLTE N B
statement of financial position
Deferred tax liabilities recognised (a) CWERRZ R IH A &
The movements of deferred taxation during the year are SRR ERIEE BT ¢
as follows:
Fair value
adjustment on
intangible assets
AP
$°000
T
At 1 January 2016 REF—AE—H—H =
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries 2530 WL — P B A R AN (1,487)

At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017

Addition through acquisition of a subsidiary
(Note 27)

REF-NEFZA=THER
—F—tH#—H—H
25 A WA — [ P 2 RIS (B E27)

(1,217)

At 31 December 2017

HoF—-LE+Z"HA=1+—H

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note
2(p), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of cumulative tax losses of approximately
$19,603,000 (2016: $9,738,000), $25,535,000 (2016:
$20,502,000) and $200,000 (2016: $Nil) related to the
Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
New Zealand, respectively.

(b)

AT B Z MRS B JH B s

R 458 B k2 (p) BT o P S BOSR » AR AR ) R i B AR
S5 [ A A s ~ R R K e At T 4 R R WA T 2
EEHBL S 1 4 1 £119,603,0008 00 (B — N4 ¢
9,738,000% JT) ~ 25,535,000% JC (= & — A 4F :
20,502,000% J6) K%200,000% 76 (=T — N 4E : )

(1,487)

(2,704)
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25 Capital, reserves and distributions
(@ Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the beginning

and the end of the year are set out below:

25 JRAS ~ fili i B oy Uk
(a) MR SEH)

A5 T %A A AL BT 0 T BN R A6 i e B
U A A RE SR A B o K R R i 2 A8 31 AL RE H

RAERBUE R Z BB T

Perpetual
Share Share  convertible  Accumulated
capital premium securities losses Total
A
Bk Rl bR RAHER st
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T i i
Notes Note 25(b) Note 25(c) Note 26
i Mksh) Mkl Hika6
Balance at 1 January 2016 REZ-AE-H— Rtk 54897 295,359 - (76,395) 273861
Changes in equity for 2016: B nERAEG R
Loss and total comprehensive income for the year — A4F BB T 2 i 44 - - - (189,017) (189,017)
Issuance of new shares upon exercise of warrants TR BBER R B 7 it 3921 149,009 = = 152,930
Issuance of new shares under open offer RS BB B e 1417 34,864 = = 36,281
Issuance of perpetual convertible securities BIAA T ES = = 396,556 = 396,556
Balance at 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 - R=Z—AE+ZA=1—R K
LA HER 670,611
Changes in equity for 2017: “ER LR ) -
Loss and total comprehensive income for the year  AAFBERGH J 2 Tieas 440 (22,829)
Distributions to holders of perpetual covertible  RATTHBtRAHFH A2k
securities 26 - (5,100)
Issuance of new shares upon exercise of warrants M 7A8 B e R B TR L %5(b)(i) 131,704 135,207
Issuance of new shares upon conversion of TR e
perpetual convertible securities Brhk b 25(b) i) 47 -

Balance at 31 December 2017 REZ—LHEF A= —HER

611,083

(293,341)

777,889
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Capital, reserves and distributions

25 JRA ~ Glifli R oy Uk ()

(continued)
Share capital (b) WA
2017 2016
B S i ZZ—A
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares shares
5 s H AR A
’000 $°000 000 $°000
T T T T
Authorised: HE
Ordinary share at $0.005 each 5 IR THE 20,0050
2 20,000,000 20,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: TR RARE :
At 1 January m—H—H 12,047,043 10,979,337 54,897
Issuance of new shares upon exercise of PRI 8 P A
warrants (Note (i) BATHRA (ML) 700,552 784,260 3,921
Issuance of new shares under open offer AR PR3 B B A TR I
(Note (ii)) (ki) 283,446 1417
Issuance of new shares upon conversion of TR AT B 5 vt A5
perpetual convertible securities (Note (iii)) BATHRAY (FsE i) 1,330 - -
At 31 December mt+ZH=+—H 12,748,925 12,047,043 60,235
Notes: Pt

(i)

In 2016, the Company made a bonus issue of warrants
to the shareholders of the Company on the basis of one
warrant for every seven existing ordinary shares of the
Company. Accordingly, 1,568,476,768 units of warrants
were issued on 4 May 2016.

Each warrant entitles the holder to subscribe in cash
for one new ordinary share at an initial subscription
price of $0.195 or $0.193 after 24 October 2016 after
adjusting for the effect of the open offer mentioned in
Note 25(b)(ii). The warrants are exercisable at any time
during the period of twelve months commencing from
4 May 2016 and ending on 3 May 2017 (both dates
inclusive). Details of the warrants are disclosed in the
Company’s circular dated 26 April 2016.

AN > AR ] [ A A R BB A T AL R R
RERE » R 5 A A AR W) L PR A i s —
DR HERS o L > RF—ANEHAMNH » B3
171,568,476, 7681 iR 8 o

By TR B RE RS IR T Ho R ARER DA B 43500 25 3R s
1B 45 J820.195% 76 5 B 80.193% 06 (H & — N
T+ A =14 H A& R R B E25(b) i) BT At 2 BB 2
WEZR) B RSB o BB
—ANERHAMNBRBE-Z—LERA=SH (BFY
R H) 1kt A A B BE R AT R o 7 B R R
ZREEINAA T B A R —ANENA Z+REZ
178 R [ B %
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Capital, reserves and distributions
(continued)

Share capital (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

During the year, 700,552,419 units (2016: 784,259,285
units) of warrants had been exercised by the holders
and accordingly, 700,552,419 ordinary shares were
issued and allotted by the Company to the holders
of the warrants. The consideration of $135,207,000
from the exercise of warrants were credited to share
capital and share premium account at the amounts
of $3,503,000 and $131,704,000, respectively. The
remaining 83,665,064 units of warrants had expired

upon maturity.

In September 2016, the Company conducted an open
offer of ordinary share with an alternative of perpetual
convertible security on the basis of one ordinary share
or one unit of perpetual convertible security for every
five ordinary shares held by the eligible shareholders
(the “Open Offer”) at a subscription price of $0.128
for each ordinary share or each unit of perpetual
convertible security. Details of the Open Offer are set
out in the Company’s prospectus dated 29 September
2016. As a result of the Open Offer, 283,446,432
ordinary shares and 2,069,272,901 units of perpetual

convertible securities were issued by the Company.

During the year, 1,330,000 units of the 2016 October
PCS (as defined in Note 26) have been converted
into 1,330,000 ordinary shares of the Company. The
amount of $154,000 from the above conversion were
credited to share capital and share premium account at
the amounts of $7,000 and $147,000, respectively.

25 JBEAS > il oy Uk (A

(b)

A (4)
W+ (A1)

(iii)

WAAERE > 8B A B47700,552, 4194 (ZF—7~
4R 1 784,259,2854)) AR RAERE » PHIIL > ARA TR
R HERS R A N B AT KL 8 700,552,419 3% 78 i o
AT 08 2 I HE B AR 135,207,000 78 H > 3,503,000
WG I 131,704,00095 70 B 43 B 5 A B T e 453 ¥ai
R o 283,665,064 wd B Al vt ©. 3 ] -

MR —NEIH » RAF DA EHEBORERA 1
i 4 0 3 — R A P B — 1 R A AT 2
V14 B 3 A B 2 5 A B 8 ) A7 R K A T 8 P
(TABHEER ) o w2 5 15 IR 48 B s A9 0 Ak A W
e B 78 470. 128U I0 o 2 B BB RE G R AR A W] H
WA RN NHEIA L H BE BB o AR
B SRR 5 283,446 43253 I K 2,069,272,901
B IR T BB B 5 B AR A W) B AT

TAAEERE 5 1,330,00008 = — N4+ H KA T it
W (€ & S aE26) T % A2 R 1,330,000/8
W o bt g A A 2 42 154,000 6 B4
Bl 3% 4 %A7,000% 76 M 147,00085 TG 5T A B A K B4y
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Capital, reserves and distributions
(continued)

Share premium

Share premium represents the difference between the
par value of the shares of the Company and proceeds
received from the issuance of the shares of the Company.
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account of the Company is distributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company would be
in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the

ordinary course of business.

PRC statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of association of the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group, the PRC subsidiaries
are required to set up certain statutory reserves, which
are non-distributable. The transfers of these reserves
are at discretion of the directors of the respective PRC
subsidiaries. The statutory reserves can only be utilised
for predetermined means upon approval by the relevant

authority.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial

statements of foreign operations.

25

(c)

(d)

A ~ fili i e o3 Uk (A

i Ao i (0

B it 5 AR 2 ) 2 B A v L B 38 4 A 4 ] B A P
W B Ak S BT 2608 - ARBR P 2 BE S AR
ARy W) 2 Aoy v A MR T 3k A3 IR T AR 4 ) I 2
W MESPE R IR S H AR A ] AR A A
FF— RSB R I 2 A A {2 -

H I 925 5 il i

AR A 45 e ) B 2 B 2 AL AR TR AR o e I B
Jiig 2y T RS A T AN AP IRZ A R o B
Ji 2 ) Y R S A o R o A T A
A B SR Z 1BV T R B g -

RE b, it
HE St £ 456 P A o R SV A S 0 A B R A R
B E 22 -
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25

B 285 A M i

Capital, reserves and distributions
(continued)

Capital management
£

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt. Net
debt includes borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period

were as follows:

A ~ Gl s B Uk (A)

S N g
A S A A B R B T DR I

B R MR R Z AL R > DL Rp IR
Fe B w BRI A

A SR A B ARG > AR SR AR IR UL 2 S )
e HL 0 7 o g e S AR R o AR T DL
A0 R 2 1) SR S ARG A R~ i TR RO IR A R
BEATHBE AR i B AR o MIRE R L
ER_F-NEFZAZT—HILEE s FREAR
BHZHRE - BRSSP BRI L -

ASRE R E AR REEEA > EARAMLE
R 05765 R AELBR DA B A R 25 4 SR S Y AR A o i
5 T K B 4 B B S H R o
RZEARBRRWT -

2017 2016
L = o

Notes $°000 $°000

B Tt TIo

Borrowings &k 23 9,617
Less: cash and cash equivalents Wk : BB ASMIEH 20 (334,627)
Net debt {5 (325,010)
Total equity JBe A HE 2 48 742,353
Total equity plus net debt JI A RE £ A0 Jon (8 755 ¥ 417,343
Gearing ratio BEARAMILE N/A AN
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Perpetual convertible securities

On 30 March 2016, the Company issued perpetual
convertible securities in an aggregate principal amount
of $170,000,000 (the “2016 March PCS”). The net
proceeds of $155,668,000 were recorded as equity.

On 24 October 2016, the Company issued perpetual
convertible securities in an aggregate principal amount
of $264,867,000 (the “2016 October PCS”, together
with the 2016 March PCS, the “PCS”) under the Open
Offer (Note 25(b)(iii)). Out of the net proceeds of
$256,780,000, $15,892,000 were recorded as a payable
for the guaranteed distributions according to the terms
of the 2016 October PCS (Note 22) and the remaining
amount of $240,888,000 were recorded as equity.

The PCS has no fixed maturity date. The Company may
at its option redeem in whole or in part of the PCS. The
PCS are convertible at the option of the holders into
ordinary shares of the Company on a one-to-one ratio at
the conversion price of $0.5436 and $0.128 per ordinary
share of the Company for the 2016 March PCS and the
2016 October PCS, respectively.

Distributions at a rate of 6% per annum shall be payable
on the PCS semi-annually and may be deferred at the
sole discretion of the Company unless compulsory
distribution payment events (including a discretionary
dividend to ordinary shareholders of the Company or
repaying any securities of lower rank or early redemption

of securities prior to its stated maturity) has occurred.

During the year, 1,330,000 units of the 2016 October
PCS have been converted into ordinary shares in the
Company (Note 25(b)(iii)). At 31 December 2017, there
are 2,067,942,901 units of the perpetual convertible

securities.

During the year, the Company has paid distributions of
$5,100,000 to holders of the 2016 March PCS.

26

KA A i e %7

MR —NEZHZTH > ARAEBITA S HR S
170,000,000% 7T I KA W #e i 55 ([ = F A 4E=
R AT 0 B i 27 1) o P45 3K I 3 4 155,668,000%
TG TIAE 2 B RE B ©

MEF—ANETAZTME > AR 6 R A B35
(Bf 525 (b)(iii)) %47 A% 4 48 % %5 264,867,000% 76
KA R e @ S ([ — N4+ A KA 3%t &
I o R R —NAE = H KA R R 5 R
[ AT B8 27 |) o 76 P45k I E#256,780,000%
JLH > 15,892,0009 70 JIARIE — R — N4 H KA
e B 7 (PR RE22) M6k 1 7 1 8 2 VR ME £ sk TEA
HE > MBR T 240,888,000%5 70 B AT 2 B bE A o

TR AT 46 P 8 5 ol S 1] 2 B H o AR ) R 4 i
T 3 w43 K A AT B BE R 7 o K A VT IR R
AR RSB E R T
AR = H KA AT B 78 270.54363 0 R —F—
| H IRk K R B 5% 5570, 128V T0 1% K A BT Bt 5 I
A ] B o

TR T 408 B 8 55 4 B 4F-6.% W 43 IR A AR S A — K
SR > T AR 2 ] T 2R A 998 45 A 0 S A MR o M
B SR Mo IR A AR (R IL B 219 H i
AR ) 98 T Pt SR 43 IR T A e B s TR A e Y A
Frok e R R 27 ) R BRI o

B > 1,330,0000 ZF — N4 H KA R 0w 2
O Su 2 AR oy ) 2 3% 7 B (B RE25(b)(ii)) IR =%
—tEF+ZH=+—H > H42,067,942,90143 7K A F]
B o

BN s AT ELR R NE = H KA R B 5
FH A2 AE5,100,000850 2 43K ©
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B 285 e A Fi

Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 24 October 2016, the Group entered into a share
purchase agreement with a vendor to acquire 100%
equity interests in Azure Capital at a cash consideration
of $6,424,000. Azure Capital owned the license to carry
out Type 6 (Advising on corporate finance) activities
under the SFO. The acquisition was completed on 24
January 2017.

For the period from the date of acquisition to 31
December 2017, Azure Capital contributed revenue of
$302,000 and loss of $597,000 to the Group’s results.
Had the acquisition occurred on 1 January 2017, the
management estimates the Group’s consolidated revenue
and loss for the year would have been $264,570,000
and $56,031,000, respectively. In determining these
amounts, management has assumed that the fair value
adjustments that arose on the date of acquisition would
have been the same if the acquisition had occurred on 1
January 2017.

WAt Bt — ] i 2 )

WZ—ANETHTWNH » REHE— L TR
SF B B T o DL A A Y I R A
25 > B4 RAE %56,424, 0009 JG Wi % K5 A MR
0 2 2 BT B R 1) T T SR 62 (Ot A SE R SRR R
B)EH - WHEFHER -2 —tE—H S HES
B o

R EE - R—-tLE+ A=+ —HILH
] 15 B 5 22 A 4 ) 3 A6 B IRR I A 302,00095 78 I
AR WG 1E597,000¥ 7T o WS IE R —F — L4
—H— H B4 > BB A AR AR T A S RO K
JE 1843 Bl £5264,570,000% 7T £ 56,031,000% JC © A
TE % S AR RN o A5 P OB B WO H 1 AR i A
RS FEOR 2 —H#
H: Z B[]



ORIENT VICTORY TRAVEL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

27

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o A 205 A P

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BRI H7EW » & RIL#IGEIR)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (continued) 27 WCHE— R &AW (4)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities WA oy Tk ) B AR 9 T £ £

assumed

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed T WO HAH o A g S T e O Y T B
in the above acquisition at the acquisition date were as FASEE AT

follows:

Pre-acquisition Recognised
carrying Fair value values on
amounts adjustments acquisition

TR i = T
W i T R G ARk TifE w2 P A L
$°000 $°000 $°000
T Tt Tt
Property, plant and equipment W - RE R (Bk12)

(Note 12) 13 — 13
Intangible assets (Note 15) g (KMEELs) = 7,377 7,377
Trade and other receivables B 5 M FoAth REWGHRIE 50 - 50
Cash and cash equivalents B4 MBI ASEEH 286 = 286
Trade and other payables 5 5 o A B Ak (85) = (85)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 24(a))  #EFERCIEEfE (KiEE24(a)) — (1,217) (1,217)
Total identifiable net assets and ik S R

consideration satisfied in cash EAE A B AR A% 264 6,160 6,424
Less: cash and cash equivalents s WO R 4 e

acquired B&%EIEH (286)
Net cash outflow Bl th s 6,138

The intangible assets represent Azure Capital’s license
to carry out Type 6 activities under the SFO. The
fair value of the intangible assets of $7,377,000 at the
acquisition date, was with reference to valuations carried
out by a qualified valuer. Management assessed that the

economic useful lives of the license to be indefinite.

STV S E 4 AR S T o o B O B R ) I T
SR B AR o WO HY o JETR R A P
7,377,0009 70 4% 2 %5 £ A% A B0 R (9 il 46 1T 7B A€ o
L Tl R > A L R AR P A B0 2 S A R
#] o
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28 Commitments 28 Hkif

At 31 December 2017, the total future minimum lease HoZ—tE+_H=1+—H RS

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are FHA EAS Z R AR ARAH A BRI T+

payable as follows:

2017 2016
L
$°000 $°000
T+t T
Within one year —4FE R 5,946
In second to fifth year, inclusive “EHAEN (B ERWAE) 4,387
After five years FAEDL b -
10,333

The Group leases certain of its retail stores and office
properties under operating lease arrangements. Leases
for these retail stores are negotiated for terms ranging
from one to eight years (2016: one to eight years), and
those for office properties are for terms ranging from
one to two years (2016: one to two years). None of the

leases includes contingent rentals.

ARG MR B A R YRS TR EEMART
M3k o ZEREIE MM RN P — 2 ) EAE
(ZF A —F )4 > MHFEY MG RH
PP —BTHERE (SR NE —ET0F) - B
FHA) 5 BRAR 4 o
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Contingent Liabilities 29 BEAAfE
At 31 December 2017, the Group had contingent R_F—tLET+H=1+—H » REHBREZ AT
liabilities in respect of a letter of credit secured for bank ZSRATAE RO R A6 5 R B AR S R i Bl AR AL R A
borrowings of an associate in an amount of $33,248,000 33,248,000% 70 (2 — N 4F @ 33,393,000 70) ° &
(2016: $33,393,000). The letter of credit will expire in BN —ZF— )\4FE+—HEH -
November 2018.
Material related party transactions 30 HKBEBHRS
Key management personnel remuneration (a) FEEHA B
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AR RPN B 2 I > AL S A MRS B B
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s B 2 AN F H I REO BT BB T dc i Wi IR B 2 4
directors as disclosed in Note 8 and certain of the highest BWE
paid employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows:
2017 2016
—E b4 RN
$°000
T+
Short-term employee benefits AR B A 7,834
Post-employment benefits TNk 1% 1 A1) 72

7,906
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30

Material related party transactions 30 HRBEB TS ()

(continued)

Other related party transactions

(b)  HLAth BBk 5 52 5%

The Group had the following material transactions with AR [ A AR AR BE N SRR O A R AR KRR S ¢

related parties during the year:

2016
C S
$°000
T
Transactions with companies BAAR S ] A PE IR AR 1
controlled by the ultimate controlling WA TR S
shareholder of the Company:
Repayment of borrowings to AT IR i 75 O£ K
related parties 466,110
(Decrease)/increase in advances from BB #ak (A)/ Hghm
related parties 1,127
Transactions with non-controlling B Jig 2\ ri] FEE SRR R AEA T
shareholders of subsidiaries: x5 :
Purchase of air tickets i =g ii 219,315 59,261
Agency fee paid for air tickets and TAREEE % BT R B3t T A I ik 25
travel related services provided A2 B 3,198
Management service fee B PRI e 1,200
Net proceeds from air tickets and S R % T 2 A R
travel related services sold JIr AR R I 207
Notes: Ftf
(i) These related party transactions constitute exempted @) 2 By A2 G M b T B B 5 14 AR i E 2
connected transactions or continuing connected 90 R R 22 57 e AR R R 22 5
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
(ii) These related party transactions constitute connected (ii) I 2 B Iy A2 B e ok v B B SR 14 A I 21 B
transactions or continuing connected transactions as HRE 5 sl B AL 5

defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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31 Company-level statement of financial 31 25 ) T B B IR DL R
position
2017 2016
“EoLE BN
Notes $°000 $°000
g Tt
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FE B &
Property, plant and equipment Wk ~ W MR 1,080
Investments in subsidiaries S A T Z -
____________________________________________________________________________________________ LT
CURRENT ASSETS i B 2
Prepayments, deposits and TEATRRIE ~ 4K
other receivables oAt EWK 9,444 3,436
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WS FF i A ) kO 807,163 662,385
Restricted bank deposits PR ERI TR 10,200 -
Cash and cash equivalents Bl& MBI &S EEE 29,143 98,705
855,950 764,526
CURRENT LIABILITIES B £ &
Other payables and accruals FC A A 3k K% HE 522 10,188 26,134
Amounts due to subsidiaries A FF e 2 ) kR 68,605 68,459
Amounts due to related companies AT TR 21N ) ik TE 98 402
_________________________________________________________________________________ 78,891 - 94995
NET CURRENT ASSETS i B A 777,059 669,531
NET ASSETS & E 777,889 670,611
CAPITAL AND RESERVES Jie A I it
Share capital i 63,745 60,235
Perpetual convertible securities TR Y i JBt 5 o5 RIS 396,556
Reserves ftts 317,742 213,820
TOTAL EQUITY &N EE L 777,889 670,611

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 29 March 2018.

Shi Baodong
iR bk

Chairman

F

Zhao Huining

o

Director

EH

HEF—)EZH U H EE W LT
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(a)

B 285 e A Fi

Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency

risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s

exposure to impairment loss is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of

these instruments.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk is mainly
in Hong Kong and Mainland China by geographical
location. The Group’s credit risk exposure is spread over
a number of counterparties and customers. Hence, it

has no significant concentration of credit risk by a single

debtor.

As disclosed in Note 19, the Group provided a letter of
credit to secure for China Comforts bank loan amounted
to RMB27,718,000 (equivalent to approximately
$33,248,000) (2016: RMB30,000,000, equivalent to
approximately $33,393,000), which would expose
the Group to credit risk. The maximum exposure to
credit risk in respect of this guarantee at the end of the
reporting period is disclosed in Note 29.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
is disclosed in Note 17 of the consolidated financial

statements.

(a)

$A 55 TR o A R % < i L 2 O PAE

AR H W RBBRRE P EAER - WBESE - A
E YT

A 1] O T I % L e e A 4 I A B S L
7 % FH 4 B 785 e A BB SR B A AL 7 3 o

i B L

A5 2 B B B 2 B S AT 5
HOR SR 2 BORE - BT Bk A B AT 22 5 2 %
o AR SR BORL T o BLAT > ASH B AT
S MEVCRIRUR B o LA 58 0 TS89 2 9 £ A 4 0 R R
j(o

AR At S (BIEBE B EEE &
oAt REBGR) 2 A7 BB B 22 5 3 T8 40 - i A B
T 5 B o < A S5 T % 4 T R Z B . o

PRI St B A i R o A T £ L B AR T A
R K B o AR A 7 B R B A BOR T A2
VE-ERill NSl ARR-E N S e L ERE e
—EBHA -

A B HE19PT B 8% s AS 42 [ Ak A B RE R 1 SR AT
g3 AN R ¥27,718,00000 (F H # £133,248,000%
J6) (ZF— A4« AR %30,000,0000C > #HH 74
33,393,000% 76) TREEME ISR > 184 A4 [ R i
15 TRV o P3R5 IIR - %98 R AH B A9 45 A L Kt i
Wl i AR W k20 B 88 o

A R A SR B 2R M KR 5 Rk 2 A R e o — 2B
AL > CRAKE S B BRIk 7 e o
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Financial risk management and 32 A% E B PR &Rt T HZ 2Pl
fair values of financial instruments (#5)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (b) Bk EFE
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using A S B 778 B P i ) Y et R B e
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers P REBGE o % L HL 2% B CHC v R 4 i TR B b i (T
the maturity of both its financial instruments and JEWE Z HRwk) Z B H DA KoKk B 7 4 S = 8L
financial assets (e.g. trade receivables) and projected LU o A M B A2 ) SRAT AR B At B
cash flows from operations. The Group’s objective is B > MERRE ST RO 2 P A o
to maintain a balance between continuity of funding
and flexibility through the use of bank loans and other
interest-bearing loans.
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities HAR O 5T A AR T BUAT 3k > A< 5 17 e 5 300 2 1y 4 i
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the ABAWIHERWT ¢
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2017
Contractual
undiscounted
cash outflow
within 1 year Carrying
or on demand amount
—E—b4
W] BIAR YT B
Bl 4
AR ERARZE R R HIE
$°000 $°000
T+t T+t
Trade payables JEAT B 5 Rk
Financial liabilities included in A AJC A REA R e 2 2
other payables and accruals B H=Li
Short-term borrowings KK

175




176

ORIENT VICTORY TRAVEL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUA

L REPORT 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 /A
AT

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BRI B 7EW » B RIL#IGEIR)

32

(b)

S5 e Mk

Financial risk management and 32 A5 JE B 4 B % 4 i T H 2 A A
fair values of financial instruments (45)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) (b)  VREhHEEBE (4)
2016
Contractual
undiscounted

cash outflow

within 1 year Carrying
or on demand amount
TR N

HECESiE:)

Bl
AR IR ER MR T 1
$°000 $°000
T Tt
Trade payables FEAT B 5 Mk 28,839 28,839

Financial liabilities included in AE A A REA K B T 2

other payables and accruals LR ffE 40,882 40,882
Short-term borrowings SIS K 9,721 9,617
79,442 79,338

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt
obligations with a floating interest rate. At 31 December
2017 and 2016, certain borrowings bear interest at

floating interest rates.

If there would be a general increase in the interest
rates of debts obligations with floating interest rates by
fifty basis points (2016: fifty basis points), with all other
variables held constant, the Groups loss after tax would
be increased by approximately $16,000 (2016: $19,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

) 352 Jl B

2SR 1 T A T 055 A 5 4 o L By > R BB
B EGEEAEH - R —LER N
TZA=t—H > BHTEREFHARGE -

W7 B B TENAREE TR (22—
ANAE s IR o AERTE H A BRI R R AR
BRT » REEPNRE-Z—-LET+A=T—H
R4 5 ) BR A% s 41 1 I £ 16,0009 76 (ZF—78
4£ 1 19,000¥7T) ©
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Financial risk management and 32 A% E B PR &Rt T HZ 2Pl
fair values of financial instruments (45)
(continued)
Currency risk (d) &% B
The Group operates in Hong Kong, Mainland China and AHE F AU ~ v [ K e R At VG AR e SR I R
New Zealand and is exposed to currency risk primarily PRI A Al (22 B A B 2 2878 S s 2 T RE B W DA S
through cash and deposit balances that are denominated ) R 2 B4 T AT R 4 i 11 1 Do LB o AR
in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the VB v A I T A VG T T B 2 R A R
functional currency of the operations to which the SR B o
transactions relates. The Group has certain investments
in Mainland China and New Zealand, whose net assets
are exposed to translation risk.
The following table details the Group’s exposure at the TS A G T e 3R P G B ) PR R
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from sl A DAAH B B 18 o B £ T DA A B W L 5 B
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency B £ W IR o st 28 H BRE > BRI AT
other than the functional currency of the entity to which BT > 515 B35 A o P 30 R R e B 1 o
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated
using the spot rate at the end of the reporting period.
Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
SHERBE (U8 7cAm)
2017 2016
Y S ZRNE
United New United
States  Zealand States  Japanese
RMB dollars dollars RMB dollars Yen
AR X AT AR Rt HIE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T T
Cash and cash equivalents B RB&SHEH 3,344 8 =
Restricted bank deposits RIS 33,393 - -
Trade payables HEAH 52 S MRk (23) (70) (156)
Other payables and accruals A e 3k B e 5182 (126) (3,762) = =
Exposure arising from recognised TR AR
assets and liabilities ST B0 R 20,680 [RIAY (62) (156)
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32

Financial risk management and
fair values of financial instruments
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the RMB and New Zealand dollars (“NZD”)
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’ loss after tax (due to changes in the fair
value of monetary assets and liabilities). In this respect, it
is assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong Kong
dollar and the United States dollar would be materially
unaffected by any changes in movement in value of
the United States dollar against other currencies. The
analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign

operations into the Group’s presentation currency.

32

%gm@%@&$ﬂ1ﬁ2ﬁ¥ﬁ

Wk (A7)

TREURE A A BRI A Z BT » AR
VR o 022 s 177 St 87 90 RS N RS S AP Bl e (T 4t
6 1) MEAR Z 45 BET AE LB B U R (o 7 B R
B AU AP BT E0) o BT > RStn i
SRTG [ Y 8y JE R 7 52 3 ST bt S0t £ R 2 A
E5E B 2 BB o oA R B\ B g A S 2 1 St 5
HFRBA AL I PP E A 2R -

If Hong Kong dollar e 5\ R EZ A
weakens against RMB

If Hong Kong dollar e i\ R THE
strengthens against RMB

If Hong Kong dollar N ST 2
weakens against NZD

If Hong Kong dollar W oe S AT AHE

strengthens against NZD

2017
=

Decrease/
Change in (increase) Increase/
foreign in loss (decrease)
currency rate after tax in equity
B4R 48 e A i i
MEREEE WA () B (RS
$°000 $°000
T Tt

2,348

(2,348)

1,034

(1,034)
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Financial risk management and 32 S0 5 R B 4 PR % &k T H 2 A PE
fair values of financial instruments (%)
(continued)
Currency risk (continued) (d) Bk ()
2016
ZE AN
Decrease/
Change in (increase) Increase/
foreign in loss (decrease)
currency rate after tax in equity
Rz i 15 AR RS
MRS WA ) B ()
$°000 $°000
T T
If Hong Kong dollar weakens e 5\ R HZ
against RMB 5% 1,648 1,648
If Hong Kong dollar s s\ R THE
strengthens against RMB (5%) (1,648) (1,648)
Fair value measurement (e) & PiGHE

Management has assessed that the fair value of cash
and cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and
bank and other borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of

these instruments.

B Al B R B I E - 2R R AT AR
AR~ MEWCRT SRR - R AT RO ~ $4r B At R
Wk z Sl e - MEAT B 5 BRk - A LAt A sk
Fe Mt # A Z  ih EfR DA B BRAT B LAl i sk vy 24 F
L SR AR AE A > R R % A 4 i L R
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(a)

(b)

(c)

34

B 285 A M i

Non-adjusting events after the
reporting perio

Acquisition of Great Ascent Limited

On 22 January 2018, the Company announced that
the Group entered into an agreement to acquire 40%
equity interests in Great Ascent Limited (“Great
Ascent”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and owns an exclusive operation right
in Hongshan Sports Park through its PRC subsidiary,
at a cash consideration of approximately $100,525,000.
At the date of this report, the acquisition has yet to be
completed.

Acquisition of Jiangsu Yiersan Real Estate
])eve]opment Company Limited

On 22 January 2018, the Company announced that the
Group entered into an agreement to acquire 40% equity
interests in Jiangsu Yiersan Real Estate Development
Company Limited (“Yiersan”), a company incorporated
in the PRC with limited liability and primarily involved
in real estate development and management, property
services, real estate agencies, construction consulting
services and sales of building materials, at a cash
consideration of approximately $24,452,000. At the date
of this report, the acquisition has yet to be completed.

Distribution to holders of the 2016 October
PCS and 2016 March PCS

On 20 March 2018, the Company announced a
distribution of $7,940,900, calculated at the distribution
rate of 6% per annum, to the holders of the 2016
October PCS. The distribution will be made on 24 April
2018.

On 28 March 2018, the Company made a distribution of
$5,100,000, calculated at the distribution rate of 6% per
annum, to the holders of the 2016 March PCS.

Immediate and ultimate controlling
party

At 31 December 2017, the directors of the Company
consider the immediate parent and ultimate controlling
party of the Group to be Orient Victory Real Estate
Group Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the
BVI, and Mr. Shi Baodong, respectively. Orient Victory
Real Estate Group Holdings Limited does not produce
financial statements available for public use.

34

e+t 1042 14 ) e R E

W i B 2% A PR 2

MF— ) E—A T H > A T B M A4
T W i Y A R A ) (TR ¥ ) (— DA o 9 s i
LA PR W) B o g I o R S A R HE A AT LS
i Z R AERE) ) 40% 2 e T S 1 > BLARE
#145100,525,000% 76 © A4 H 81 > 3% WO 5 I
MARTEK

WL B T A — = o e R A BR 2 )

WoF— ) E—H T > A T B A A 5
WL — =B EMBAMRAR (—==))
(— [ v B i B 2 A BR A R > R K 5 e
PH S S BE - WS IRES ~ 5 b AR g S IR
5 T 8 R EARL) 40% 22 BERERT S ik » B &ARE
#17%524,452,000% 78 ° RAAFRAE H I > 3% 002 5 %
RIEH °

o R NETHRATRBERE S R &
—NEZH R AR B SR A A\ 4 Uk
NoF—)E=ZAZ+H > RAFEEM N ZF—N
A H KT 38 25 A N IR H 4 R B R 6%
FH 5 Z 43 UR7,940,900% 78 © A B IR R ZF— N\
HENPH AR -

RF—)4E=H 1+ )\H » RAF | _F—N
= H R AT He BB R R N IR B R4 BEYR B R 6% 5T
2 43UR5,100,00088 TG ©

L% B 8P

BoF-EETZHAZH s KAAFEERZI A
A5 B A LR B O W) Rt A A58 IR T 4 ) 2 ' S A 7
JF R B2 e M S A RIS L S P e B A PR A R B
PRI A o SIS B S 48 T 42 JBe A IR 2 ) I 28 ) 38
P TP P P B B R o
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Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the

Group.

35

gE2_F LS+ _H=1—HIi
A JBE O AR A1 1H 1 AR AL RO B RT AR
W w] Y I B R W] R R B

BREAMBHEERTNBEZH > WG H0A G O
2 JE e UG AT AR B aT MR ) ~ 2R > LR ERT AR
WA R RRRE_F—-LE+ A=+ —H
AR REM AR AR > IR A M B HR P IRA - %%
ERTAS ~ 5w 48 Bl R e PR 6 455 T 1) T g B AC AR L Ay
B -

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning

on or after

i MEE:
AR
BT AR

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 16, Leases

AU R R R SEOSE - 2 A

AU B B H O R QSR 155 » AT F T A AT A

AU R R ISR 1655 » A

1 January 2018
=& )\4E
—H—H

1 January 2018
—&R)\4E
—H—H

1 January 2019
R
—~H—H
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B 285 A M i

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects
of the new standards which may have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the expected impacts are discussed below. As
the Group has not completed its assessment, further
impacts may be identified in due course and will be
taken into consideration when determining whether to
adopt these new requirements before their effective
date and which transitional approach to take, where
there are alternative approaches allowed under the new
standards. While the assessment has been substantially
completed for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the actual
impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards may
differ as the assessment completed to date is based on
the information currently available to the Group, and
further impacts may be identified before the standards
are initially applied in the Group’s interim financial
report for the six months ending 30 June 2018. The
Group may also change its accounting policy elections,
including the transition options, until the standards are

initially applied in that financial report.

35

B#E_F-tLtFT_HA=1+—HIik
AP JEE O A A1 15 1 oA A R AR B T S
CHES N E L DN 32 W)

A5 T S TP % S0 T AR BT AT e B Y 0 2
A Z W1 e Z 53 o 3 Hy ik > AR SR [ G T
B ) A% B 2 S M R TS B R T U T
T o A ) FEC) 5 B A0 — 2B R Y R SRR o FRY
AR I o R 5 B A o A 8 TP T R I %
e — 3 S o ST PR T W% TR A 2K H Y
il 75 BR A0V % 55T A B RABRT v e A A
TP IR P ) R I 5 9 R B S R o AR AT L
A v S 2 ot o S SR OE M A v I A S SR 15
SOEAT Z REAN BRI A CoE B > B IR A% 55 e I
ZHBBEITHAR > WS Boe i i il
TIEETA AR g BRI RORHEEAT > iR % S R
HREARAERRE_Z - N\EAH=ZTHIEA
il A 2 vb S0 S 25 i T AT RE R BEBUE — B -
G T 7 T RE o CH ORI
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Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued

but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on
accounting for financial instruments, HKAS 39,
Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement.
HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets,
including the measurement of impairment of financial
assets and hedge accounting. On the other hand,
HKFRS 9 incorporates without substantive changes
the requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition and
derecognition of financial instruments and the

classification and measurement of financial liabilities.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group
plans to use the exemption from restating comparative
information and will recognise any transition adjustments
against the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.
Expected impacts of the new requirements on the

Group’s financial statements are as follows:

35

BE_F-LFEL_A=1—HIk
AP JBE O A A1 1HL 1o o A R BT A
CEE N E L RN 32 N

B R ISR O9E » &R T H

A i T ot i ) SR OB AR B < T HL 7 et
V& B 7 5 WO BUA e B A o R U 230 9% > 2 T
K R EE o AR IR R SR OB 51\ Sl
B Sy R B R AL o B A S P
BREE G o S Ji T > v B ol A SR 05E
A9 N L SIS K i 528 T 4 o T U SR 30 BE A B e
B s b e G i T HL S R B S St B BLE -

A s B 2 e o Y ) SR OBR HOB WAL BRI % — )\ A —
H — H B A5 B AR 47 30 [ A2 280 o A 45 I 38 i
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Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)
(a) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at (1)
amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”) and (3) fair value through other

35
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business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the asset. If a debt
instrument is classified as FVTOCI then
effective interest, impairments and gains/
losses on disposal will be recognised in

profit or loss.

— For equity securities, the classification is
FVTPL regardless of the entity’s business
model. The only exception is if the equity
security is not held for trading and the
entity irrevocably elects to designate that
security as FVTOCIL. If an equity security
is designated as FVTOCI then only
dividend income on that security will be
recognised in profit or loss. Gains, losses
and impairments on that security will
be recognised in other comprehensive

income without recycling.
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Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued

but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)
(a) Classification and measurement (continued)

The Group has assessed that its financial assets
currently measured at amortised cost will
continue with their respective classification and
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS
9. The Group does not have any financial assets
currently measured at FVTPL or classified
as “available-for-sale” and therefore this new
requirement may not have any impact on the
Group on adoption of HKFRS 9.

The classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities under
HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged from HKAS
39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair
value change of a financial liability designated
at FVTPL that is attributable to changes of
that financial liability’s own credit risk to be
recognised in other comprehensive income
(without reclassification to profit or loss). The
Group currently does not have any financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL and therefore
this new requirement may not have any impact
on the Group on adoption of HKFRS 9.
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Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)
(b)

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9
replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39
with an “expected credit loss” model. Under
the expected credit loss model, it will no longer
be necessary for a loss event to occur before
an impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an
entity is required to recognise and measure
expected credit losses as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit
losses, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. The Group expects that this
new impairment model may result in an earlier
recognition of credit losses on the Group’s trade
receivables and other financial assets. Based on
a preliminary assessment, if the Group were to
adopt the new impairment requirements at 31
December 2017, there will not have a significant
impact on cumulated impairment loss as

compared with that recognised under HKAS 39.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will replace the existing revenue standards,
HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers revenue arising from
sale of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11,
Construction contracts, which specifies the accounting

for revenue from construction contracts.
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Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued

but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with

customers (continued)

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group
has identified the following areas which are expected to

be affected:

(a) Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are
disclosed in Note 2(q). Currently, revenue from
the sale of goods and provision of services is
generally recognised when the risks and rewards
of ownership have passed to the customers
and when the services have been rendered,

respectively.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when
the customer obtains control of the promised
good or service in the contract. HKFRS 15
identifies 3 situations in which control of the
promised good or service is regarded as being

transferred over time:

(i) When the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the entity’s performance, as
the entity performs;

(ii) When the entity’s performance creates
or enhances an asset (for example work
in progress) that the customer controls as

the asset is created or enhanced;

(iii) ~ When the entity’s performance does
not create an asset with an alternative
use to the entity and the entity has
an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.
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Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

(a) Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do
not fall into any of these 3 situations, then under
HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue for the
sale of that good or service at a single point in
time, being when control has passed. Transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the
indicators that will be considered in determining

when the transfer of control occurs.

The Group has assessed that the new revenue
standard is not likely to have significant impact
on how it recognises revenue from sales of

goods.

The Group plans to elect to use the cumulative effect
transition method for the adoption of HKFRS 15 and
will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at
1 January 2018. As allowed by HKFRS 15, the Group
plans to apply the new requirements only to contracts
that are not completed before 1 January 2018. Since the
number of “open” contracts at 31 December 2017 is
limited, the Group expects that the transition adjustment
to be made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 15
will not be material. However, the expected changes
in accounting policies as described above could have a
material impact on the Group’s financial results from
2018 onwards.
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Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in Note 2(h), currently the Group enters
into some leases as the lessee and classifies the leases

into operating leases.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly
on the way that lessors account for their rights and
obligations under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16
is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to
practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e.
at the commencement date of the lease the lessee will
recognise and measure a lease liability at the present
value of the minimum future lease payments and will
recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After
initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will
recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of
the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of
recognising rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a
practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the
lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-
value assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the

lease term.
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Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting
as a lessee of leases for retail stores and office properties
which are currently classified as operating leases. The
application of the new accounting model is expected
to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and
to impact on the timing of the expense recognition in
the statement of profit or loss over the period of the
lease. As disclosed in Note 28, at 31 December 2017 the
Group’s future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases amount to $13,163,000
for retail stores and office properties, the majority of
which is payable within one to five years. Some of these
amounts may therefore need to be recognised as lease
liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets, once
HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will need to perform
a more detailed analysis to determine the amounts of
new assets and liabilities arising from operating lease
commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking
into account the applicability of the practical expedient
and adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated
between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the

effects of discounting,

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. The standard offers different
transition options and practical expedients, including
the practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements are, or
contain, leases. If this practical expedient is chosen, the
Group will apply the new definition of a lease in HKFRS
16 only to contracts that are entered into on or after
the date of initial application. If the practical expedient
is not chosen, the Group will need to reassess all of its
decisions about which existing contracts are, or contain,
leases, using the new definition. Depending on whether
the Group elects to adopt the standard retrospectively or
follow a modified retrospective method of recognising a
cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of
equity at the date of initial application, the Group may or
may not need to restate comparative information for any

changes in accounting resulting from the reassessment.
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-

controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A 25 408

31 December 2017 —&—t4FE+_H=1+—H
(Expressed in HK$) (PA#ICH7R)

as extracted from the published audited financial statements is

set out below.

3 25 AW B A AR T SR - S - R B IR A
s (W E OB EFERMEHR) AR T* -

Results ey
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
CE L IR NE DR A ZFR g R4
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000  HKS$000
Tt T¥on Tt Tt BRI
REVENUE A 109,417 66,444 127,429 200,556
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX FeBini (BdR), Bl (194,065) 829 3,328 27,406
INCOME TAX XEy = 20 (2,786) (5,533)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AN (), E&A (194,065) 849 542 21,873
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: AL T
EQUITY OWNERS OF AN wIER A N
THE COMPANY (191,816) 1,369 1,029 21,812
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS EIZ23d (2,249) (520) (487) 61
(194,065) 849 542 21,873
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ORIENT VICTORY TRAVEL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

TLAF BA B i 2L
31 December 2017 —ZF—t4+_H=+—H
(Expressed in HKS) (PAU#SICHI7R)

Assets and liabilities

TOTAL ASSETS A e
TOTAL LIABILITIES FG=Ri
TOTAL EQUITY JBE A HE £ ABE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: REAS Ty
EQUITY OWNERS OF THE COMPANY AN wIHE s BER A\
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ERCIL &

& MAlE
31 December
+=H=+—H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

SELE ZENE ZFR-LE ZFNE ZFR-=F
HKS$000  HK$000 — HK$000  HK$000  HKS$'000
T Tt Tt Tt T#t
926,022 823,178 943,382 185,982 471,429
(EGER  (80,825)  (552,278)  (56503)  (257,426)

858,324 742,353 391,104 129,479 214,003

851,772 738,537 384,796 122,349 192,489
6,552 3,816 6,308 7,130 21,514

858,324 742,353 391,104 129,479 214,003
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